1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

9.

L A N D B A N K 1234 Market St., 16 Floor, Philadelphia PA 19107
philadelphialandbank.org

Board of Director’s Meeting — RESCHEDULED
November 27, 2018 — 4:00 PM
Agenda
Roll Call

Public Comment

Approval of Minutes for the Meeting of October 11, 2018

Property Dispositions

Resolution Amending the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank (Officer Nominations/
Appointment of Committee Members/Nomination of Eleventh Member)

Resolution Delegating Authority to Execute and Deliver Certificates of Completion, Lease
Agreements, and License Agreements, Subject to Certain Terms and Conditions
Resolution Approving Assignment and Assumption of Notes and Mortgages from the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Philadelphia Land Bank

Resolution Accepting Philadelphia Land Bank Audited Financial Statements for Year Ending
June 30, 2018

Executive Director's Report (including update on property transfers, acquisition, and sales)

10. Adjournment

THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
BOARD MEETING MINUTES

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Thursday,
October 11, 2018, in the offices of the Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation, being its regular
meeting place, 17th Floor, 1234 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, pursuant to proper notices.

CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Dunbar called the meeting to order at 3:36 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENT ;
Steve Cusano, Senior Counsel, announced that prior to today’s Public Session, the Board did not hold

an Executive Session,

Agenda Item 1-
Roll Call

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Richard DeMarco, Christian
Dunbar, Michael Koonce, Paulette Adams, Joshu Harris (entered at 3:45 p.m.), Jennifer Kates (left at
3:45 p.m.), Majeedah Rashid.

The following members of the Board of Directors were not present: Dominique Casimir, Rick Sauer,
and Courtney Voss.

The following staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Steve Cusano, Esq., Andrea, Saah, Esq.,
Christi Jackson, Stephen Novotny, and Bradley Vassallo.

Public Attendees: The list of public attendees is attached to these minutes.

A quorum of directors was present and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with
business. '

Agenda Item 2
Public Comment

Mr. Dunbar asked if any member of the public wished to comment upon any item on the Board’s
agenda.

Ms. Karen Minor asked about the purchase price for a property when a 501(c)(3) is involved, which
Mr. Rodriguez answered.

There were no other comments from the public.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 1 0f26



Agenda Item 3
Approval of Board Minutes

Ms. Adams asked why the September 20, 2018 minutes stated there were no comments from the public
when there were comments. Mr. Cusano responded that the minutes should have stated that there were
no other comments from the public.

Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting of September 20, 2018
with the above referenced correction.

Mr. DeMarco made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting of September 20, 2018 as
corrected. The motion was seconded by Mr. Koonce.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the minutes of the September
20, 2018 Board meeting as corrected.

Agenda Item 4
Property Dispositions

A. Lease of 1420-22 Poplar Street

The lease for 1420 and 1422 Poplar Street was tabled.
Mr. Harris entered the meeting at 3:45 p.m.
Ms. Kates left the meeting at 3:45 p.m.
Agenda Items 5 and 6
Election of Officers

Resolutions for Appointments to the Finance Committee, Strategic Plan Committee, and the
Policy Committee

Mr. Cusano provided a handout that set forth a proposed nomination and election process for the
election of officers and committee members, which is attached to these minutes as Exhibit A. Rather
than hold elections as done in the past, Mr. Cusano recommended that the Board utilize the proposed
nomination and election process set forth on Exhibit A, which Mr. Cusano then explained. The Board
had a lengthy deliberation about the nomination and election process and decided to postpone the
election of officers and committee members to the November board meeting.

During deliberations, the Board requested several changes to the proposed process. Regarding the
point permitting floor nominations, Mr. Koonce asked that the wording be changed to state that the

person being nominated must be present to accept the nomination and must accept the nomination in
order to stand for election.

Ms. Jackson asked about incorporating a provision regarding tie-breakers.

Mr. Dunbar asked that the vote be open and not anonymous, therefore the provision regarding counting
votes following the meeting is not needed. '

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 2 of 26



Mr. Dunbar also asked that the Bylaws be amended to reflect a new nomination process, which Mr.
Cusano responded could be accomplished at the next Board meeting. Ms. Adams asked that any
proposed amendment to the Bylaws be discussed with the Policy Committee before being presented to
the Board.

Mr. Cusano then reiterated the requested changes to the nominations process as follows: (i) for
permitted floor nominations the person being nominated must be present to accept the nomination and
accepts the nomination; (ii) a tie-breaker provision will be added; and (iii) the vote will be open (i.e.,
not anonymous). There being no other comments, questions, or suggested changes, the Board
proceeded on to the next agenda item.

, Agenda Item 7
Resolution Authorizing an Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement Between
Philadelphia Land Bank and Interface Studio LLC for 2019 Strategic Plan

Mr. Cusano and Mr. Rodriguez explained the need to change the schedule of deliverables for the Fiscal
Year 2019 Strategic Plan.

The Board deliberated about the proposed schedule and had several questions and comments, the
majority of which focused on the importance of soliciting, receiving and incorporating public
comment. The Board also discussed what would happen if City Council did not approve the Strategic
Plan or required revisions. The Board asked that the schedule indicate the dates by which people must
register to speak at the public hearing and deadline for submission of public comments.

Mr. Dunbar raised the question and the Board discussed whether the Land Bank should request
changing the frequency of strategic plan updates under the ordinance due to the cost and staff capacity
needed to provide an annual strategic plan. '

Mr. Harris asked that the Resolution be amended to include that the Board will be notified of any
modification to this Resolution.

Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the Resolution Authorizing an Amendment to the
Professional Services Agreement Between Philadelphia Land Bank and Interface Studio LLC for 2019
Strategic Plan with the following amendments: (i) addition of appropriate dates for registering to speak
at the public hearing; (ii) deadline for submission of written testimony or public comments; and (iii)
that the Board will be notified of any modifications to this Resolution.

Mr. Harris made a motion to approve this Resolution as amended. The motion was seconded by Mr.
DeMarco.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Authorizing

an Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement Between Philadelphia Land Bank and Interface
Studio LLC for 2019 Strategic Plan, as amended, which is attached as Exhibit B to these minutes.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 3 of 26



Agenda Item 8
Resolution Authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Philadelphia and
the Philadelphia Land Bank Regarding VPRC Property Dispositions

Mr. Rodriguez explained this Resolution and answered questions from the Board. After some
deliberation, the Board tabled this Resolution.

Agenda Item 9
Executive Director's Report

Mr. Rodriguez distributed the handouts attached as Exhibit C to these minutes.

Mr. Rodriguez reviewed acquisitions to date, including funds expended to date and funding requests
submitted to the Finance Department, as well as dispositions to date and the status of RFPs in Council
Districts 2 and 3, as presented in the handout. Mr. Rodriguez stated that the handout showing
dispositions to date was incorrect and that a corrected handout would be provided at the next Board
meeting. The Board had several questions regarding dispositions and acquisitions, which Mr.
Rodriguez addressed.

Mr. Rodriguez informed the Board that the lease for the Poplar Street properties would be revised to
include additional properties owned by the Land Bank. Mr. Rodriguez also informed the Board that
Mr. Vassallo will be attending meetings of the Mayor’s Task Force for the opioid crisis.

Mr. Koonce asked about the status of the 33" and Berks St RPF, to which Mr. Rodriguez responded.
Mr. Koonce then stated that he would like the staff to develop policies governing the Land Bank’s
disposition of properties with environmental issues, and Mr. Rodriguez indicated that he has begun that

process.

Agenda Item 10
Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to adjourn
the meeting.

Mr. Koonce made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Rashid seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was
adjourned at 5:11 p.m.

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 4 0of 26



1234 Market Street, 171 ¥

GUEST SIGN-IN SHEEY

88 PHILADELPHIA
221 AND BANK

BOARD OF DIRECTORS -
REGULAR MEETING
Thursday, October 11, 2018 at 3:30 PM

ALL GUESTS ARE REQUIRED TO SIGN-IN

Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19107

THIS SIGN-IN SHEET WILL BE PART OF THE MEFTING MINUTES AND ANY INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN WILL BE MADE PUBLIC

NAME COMPANY EMAIL

1 L peen Mipbip. e o

2 WW%W?W S g Ay ﬁwkfw{ﬁmi @ N fziéw T eV

3 w% 4 mw {2 m% il G o o
8|7 vreed Urlomy & \ceehatcg 6 Copreil.con
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

PFage l

Page 5 0f 26

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018



EXHIBIT A

I PHILADELPHIA
== LAND BANK  osorerst, 167raon prtaceiniapa 19107
MEMORANDUM

To:  Board of Directors

From: Steve Cusano, Esq.

Date: October 11, 2018 :
Re:  FElection of Officers and Committee Members

I. ByLAws,
Below are the applicable provisions of the Bylaws regarding election of officers and

-appointment of committee members.

201.  Election

The Board shall elect from among its members a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer and other
officers as the Board determines at the Annual Meeting of the Board. The officers so duly elected
shall hold office for one year or until their successors are appointed and qualified.

310.  Committees

The Board may designate one or more standing and ad hoc committees, with each committee
consisting of one or more members and may include individuals who are not members of the Board.
The Board may designate one or more members as alternate members of a committee, who may
replace an absent or disqualified member at a meeting of the committee.

L. PROPOSED PROCESS.

e Nominations for officer and committee positions will be submitted to the Executive Director and
Senior Counsel by email no later than October 31, 2018 at 5 pm.

¢ Board members can nominate themselves or a fellow Board member.

¢ Nominees will be contacted to confirm that they are interested in accepting the nomination
before their name is added to the list of nominees.

e The Board is presented with a ballot listing all nominees and each member votes for their
preferred candidates for each position.

e If there is no nominee for a position, any member of the Board may nominate themselves or a
fellow Board member at the Board meeting so long as the person being nominated is present to
accept the nomination.

e Following the meeting, the votes are counted and the Board is notified of the results via email.
The newly elected officers and committee members shall assume their responsibilities
immediately upon being notified. The election results will be presented at the next Board
meeting for inclusion in the minutes.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 6 of 26



Election of Officers and Committee Members ;
October 11, 2018 Page 2

TII. CURRENT OFFICERS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS.
Below is a list of the current officers and committee members.

Chair Vice Chair Secretary Treasurer
Christian Dunbar Jennifer Kates Vacant Michael Koonce

Strategic Planning Committee Chair: Jennifer Kates
Dominique Casimir
Majeedah Rashid

Finance Committee Chair: Michael Koonce
Paulette Adams
Richard DeMarco

Rick Sauer

Christian Dunbar

Policy Committee Chair: Courtney Voss
Paulette Adams
Dominique Casimir
Majeedah Rashid
Rick Sauver

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 7 of 26



EXHIBIT B

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 45
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK AND
INTERFACE STUDIO LLC FOR 2019 STRATEGIC PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") deems it necessary
and in the best interest of the Land Bank to amend the Professional Services Agreement between the
Philadelphia Land Bank and Interface Studios LLC for preparation of the 2019 Strategic Plan (the
"Agreement") pursuant to the terms of this Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia-
Land Bank that:

1. The schedule set forth in the Scope of Services shall be amended to substantially conform to the schedule

below.
Kick-off Meeting Completed
First Round of Outreach Meetings Completed

First Strategic Plan Draft Completed November 29, 2018

Second Strategic Plan Draft Completed Decemnber 11, 2018

Preliminary Strategic Plan Published for Public December 19, 2018

Comment

Second Round of Outreach Meetings Week of January 7, 2019

Third Strategic Plan Draft Completed January 17, 2019

Land Bank Public Hearing

Week of January 28, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Provided

February 7, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by Land Bank Board

February 14, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Introduced to City Council

February 21, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by City Council

February 28, 2019

Documentation of Process

March 8, 2019

Complete Wrap-Up March 15, 2019

- 2. The Executive Director is further authorized to enter into and sign an amendment to the Agreement on
behalf of the Land Bank, in form and substance acceptable to the Executive Director and Senior Counsel,
in accordance with this Resolution.

3. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel

will notify the Board of any modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the date
of such modifications.

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 10/11/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 8 of 26



The above schedule (shown in the original Resolution) was amended as shown below (A) as requested by the
Board at the meeting held on 10/11/2018 to (i) add dates for registering to speak at the public hearing; (ii) add
a deadline for submission of written testimony or public comments; and (iii) to provide that the Board will be
notified of any modifications to this Resolution; and (B) by the Executive Director with the advice of Senior
Counsel as it was necessary or desirable to modify certain dates to cari‘y out the purposes and intents of the
Resolution.

Kick-off Meeting

Completed

First Round of Outreach Meetings

Completed

First Strategic Plan Draft Completed

November 29, 2018

Presentation of First Strategic Plan Draft to
Individual Council Members

December 10-11, 2018

Land Bank and Interface/RES to present update at
Housing Advisory Board Meeting

December 12, 2018

Second Strategic Plan Draft Completed (formatted,
graphic version, incorporating planning committee
edits and sessions with council, HAB, and PLB Board)

December 14, 2018

Preliminary Strategic Plan Published for Public
Comment

December 21, 2018 (released with Save
the Date for Public Hearing)

Second Round of Outreach Meetings

Week of January 7, 2019

Open Registration to Speak at Public Hearing and
Begin Accepting Submission of Written Testimony

Week of January 7, 2019

Revised Strategic Plan Draft Published for Public
Review

January 17, 2019

Deadline to Register to Speak at Public Hearing and
Deadline for Submission of Written Testimony

Week of January 21, 2019

Land Bank Public Hearing

January 30, 2019

Compile Public Comment

Week of February 4, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Provided

Week of February 11, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by Land Bank Board

Mid-February, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Introduced to City Council

Mid-February, 2019

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by City Council

Mid-February/Early-March, 2019

Documentation of Process

Early-March, 2019

Complete Wrap-Up

Mid-March, 2019

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 9 of 26




Land Bank Update as of October 11, 2018

TAX ACQUISITONS Status Report as of 10/11/2018:

FY 2018 ACQUISITION BUDGET  $ 3,140,780.00
SPENDING AUTHORITY THRU 12/31/2018  § 2,070,000.00
ACQUISITION DRAWDOWN AS OF - $ 839,812.01

65.91%
26.74%

BALANCE  $1,230,187.99

WIS S 66404726 | S 66404726 | S 271,714.82 S 39233244

Aug-19 | S 3827235.01 | S 4861545 | § 24578504 | $ 9116285 § 91,162.85
Sep-19 | S 21831215 . S 12714930 S 19923035 $ 1908180 § 19,081.80
Oct-18

SUMMARY OF TAX ACQUISITIONS TO DATE {SEE ATTACHED FOR DETAIL):

TOTAL =404
Housing = 179
Commercial/Mixed Use = 14
Gardens/Open Space = 20
Community Use = 10
Side yards = 181

DISPOSITIONS: .
Currently PLB staff is processing 354 lots towards settlement, The attached report shows what

stage and intended use, by council district the lots are.

SUMMARY OF DISPOSITIONS TO DATE (SEE ATTACHED FOR DETAIL):

FISCAL YEAR PARCELS UNITS AMOUNT
FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 98 146 $ 1,447,801.00
FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 i8 13 $ 323 791.00

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 10 of 26



REQUESTE FOR PROPOSALS [RFPY

Councilmatic District Xt /

ISSUED: The RFP will Bpatted before November 2018.

GRAYS FERRY AFFORDABLE HOMEOWHNERSHIP

The Philadelphia Land Bank ("Land Bank"} Is soliciting proposals from developers to acquire and
develop twenty-four (24) parcels in the Grays Ferry neighborhood for affordable

homeownership.

Councilmatic District 3:

RE-ISSUED: After the close of the initial posting requests came In the Land Bank and the
Councifmatic Office. The RFP was re-posted on July 9, 2018,

5109, 5111, 511%, 5121-5125 Market Street

The Philadelphia Land Bank ("Land Bank"} is soliciting proposals from developers to acquire and
develop all parcels, The Land Bank expects competitive offer prices and invites proposals for the
entire Development Site. There are no restrictions on the type of development proposed.
ZONING: CMX-2 :

SUBMISSIONS RECEIVED: 2

CURRENT STATUS: AWARDED

Water Rate Board
In September 2018 the Water Rate Board provided the PLB a refund of $65,000,

PhHladelphia Land Bank Strategic Planning Process
The Philadelphia Land Bank is currently working with Interface Studios LLC for preparation of the

2019 Strategic Plan. This plan will establish 5- year goals for the Land Bank.

Strategic Planning Committee has decided that we will need more time 1o complete the plan. l$sues that
have given rise to the need for more time are:

o Finalize the Qutline for the Strategic Plan
o Integrate the feedback from interest groups

e Committee members have asked the Land Bank Staff to propose systems for:
o Applications for Tax Acquisitions
o Processing of EOls

We asked Interface to propose a ravised timeline see below. We expect to complete February 2019,

For next steps:

e Stake holders have been informed of the new schedule for the 2% round of outreach,
s A resolution is before the Board today October 11, 2018,

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 11 0of 26



BENCHIMIARKS CRIGINAL TIMELINE Pushs to FEBRUARY
Pubdish Draft for Comment 10/5/2018 12/19/2018
~ 2 weeks for review
10/17/2018 -
Rourd 2 Outreach 10/19/2018 waeek of 1/7
~ 1 week for edits
Publish Revised Draft 10/26/2018 1/17/2019
rainirnurn 10 days before hearing
Public Hearing 11/7/2018-11/8/2018 week of 1/28
final edits
Dreliver Einal Plan to Board 11/12/2018 27772019
PLE Board Meeting / Vote 11/15/2018 2/14/2019
intraduce st City Council 11/25/2018 2{21/2019
City Councll Vote 12/6/2018 212812018
Docurmentation of Process 12/14/2018
Coraplete Wrap Up 12/21/2018

City Councll Break

Cither fssues

e The Land Bank is in negotiations with Live Nation regarding 8 lease for access to parcels owned

12/17/2018-1/7/2019

by the Land Bank behind The MET to be used for staging and loading.

& The Land Bank has designated personnel to represent the Planning & Development Depariment

to the Mayor's Opiold Crisis Taskforce

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 12 of 26



Tax Acguisitions to Date Philadelphia Land Bank 1071172018

| L€ District Street Address troposed Use | OPA Market Yalue

oL asisseTdsT o Market Rate _.$14,70000 | Housing=2 .
2 1 [2107EDAKOTAST Market Rate $16,300.00

1S28THSY _ Affordable Housing L $2p20000 Housing = 7
1516 § TANEY ST - Affordable Housing $14,600.00
| 1822R-34 POINT BREEZE AVE Affordable Housing $75,600.00
C2326PIERCEST  Afordable Housing $20,600,00
ISSASETTINGST . WorkforceHousing | $17,300.00
ZB2LANNINST Housing C 85,300,
(BIZATASKERST

. Workforce Housing 44570000
Community Garden 510, 200,00 -

1952 SREDFIELDST = Sideyerd . $8,100.00  sideyards=2

6038 ALLMAN ST Sideyard &7.800.00 SRS

SRESIINTEN N INHINE NIV,

Page 1 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 13 of 26



Tax Acpsisitions (o Date Philadelphia Land Bank 10/11/2018

DT tstrict Street Address Froposed Use ﬁ?l& ?sltarket Va!ue

234 HANSONST Affordable Housing 39 800.00
AFOLSOMST Affordable Housing 58,900.00
4156 W GIRARD AW fordable Housing 515%,600.00
4405 BROWN 5T ordable Housing $4,600.00
5137DELANCEY ST Affordable Housing R
| Affordable Housing _ $20,500.00
le Housing 56,700,00
* Affordable Housing 1$7,800.00
 Housing Loos8go000

O0 NI W N

_ Housng 82090000
57050000

_A9BBWSTUESST | Housing | $4,50000
14980 KERSHAW ST :
5102 BOWMAN cr

A

Housing 81170000
MHousing . $10,800.00
Housing

5523BEAUMONTST
555 N 52ND ST
1805 N 40TH §T

1116 N 42ND ST
1709 N DE KALB ST
710N 36THST
13829 CAMBRIDGE ST

.
~
Wit wiwiwiwiwiwiee W e Wi wiw el

24
25
26
27
28
29

. A »L(}mmaﬂ]{y L}Je - Cammumgy Usexg s

~ Community Use $19,800. oa’_f{_ '
Sideyard . L$9B0000
Sideyerd §7,10000

Sdeyerds=9 ]

Sideyerd 3870000

Sideyard ... $820000
Sideyard L 514,400.00
$26,400.00

144 N PEACH ST

159 DEARBORN ST
1760 5 GOTH ST B
S9N PAXON 5T

$6,000.0
$20,900,00
_$8,700.00

horad
Sideyard
Sideyard $12,200.00

w;w§w;m5w§w<w‘w w;wiw,wgwfw(w:w (953 wx»w mu.w LU SH N TV TCRE V91

Page 2 0f 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 14 of 26



Tax Acuulsitions 1o Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

1071372018

37

49

2

a5

R
a8

W W e W R W s w W w Wi W W W W W W e e e W

| L District (Street Address

Proposed Use

Sidevard

. Sideyard 1

L OPA Market Value |

320,100,060

$15,600.00

A7NPEACHST
49 N PEACH s*r

BNM}TH Sf

5028 PARRISHST ',
5033 KERSHAW ST
5052 PARRISH ST

5306 ADDISONST
| 5312 WARRENST

34?9 N RFOLK ST

5455 REGENT ST

55 N PEACH ST

N J%sa? BEAUMONT ST

' %nzvgzumcﬁ o
NPEACHST

5811 BEAUMONT ST

Sideyard

" 51090000

Sidevard

~ Sideyard

52630000

.$13,300,00

v “;Sadeyard, )
Sideysrd

B Sidevard

| Sdeyerd

$8,400.00

“",Sideyard

Sideyard

_Sideyard
Sideyard
Sideyard

740000

$7,700.00

. $6,50000
$10,700.00

5933 WINDSOR ST _
| 5930 SPRINGFIELD AVE
" 5041 WARRINGTON AVE
626 N 53RD ST

650 N BIRD ST

Sideyard

$8,500.00

Sideyard

§10.200,00 s

. Sideyard
Sideyard

Sideyard -

- $4,100, so
$5,200.00

1020000 o

Page 3 of

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

12

Page 15 of 26



Tax Acguisitions to Date Philadelphia Land Bank /1372018

| CC District [Street Address Proposed Use | OBA Market Value

Affordiable Housing $7,900,00 Housing=1 .

3216 N NEWKIRK ST

omi en . $7400.00
Community Garden $7 400‘ o0
Community Garder; $3,500.00
$16,800.00

12700 W SILVER ST
420 N DAGGETT ST
9525 MASTER 5“5*

Garden/Open Space &

. MiredUse
 Sideyard

| Sdeyards=S52

'”$33L§99;96'f
$4,100.00

2432 W TORONTO ST
2520 W SELTZERST
| 2532 WSELTZERST
2547 WSILVERST ¢
2613 ROBERTSAVE
2621 WSELTZERST
2627 WSELTZERST

(o T NIV I SRRSO Y

fos
<

>
P

oy
jaS3

| 2639 W SELTZER ST , -
2640 WSELTZERST “Sideyord
(2650N33RDST ¢ Sideyard
| 2654 WSELTZERST Sideyard
2716 NNEWKIRKST  Sideyard
2718 N NEWKIRK §T : Sideyard
12727 W STERNER ST
2730 WSILVERST
2760 NRINGGOLD ST
12769 NTAYLORST
2817 NNEWKIRKST
12820 N 26TH ST
IB2ANBAILEYST
" 2851 N RINGGOLD ST
2852 NRINGGOLDST
12857 NRINGGOLD ST

s
LS

P
L5 3y

s 30000 e
52,800.00
. $2,500.00
$3,000.00
33,300.00

16
i7

%

' ,';2917 N mmw ST
| 2920NRINGGOLDST
LJZB25 N

580000 L
$3,300.00 '
$3,300.00

52,100.00

1W CLEMENTINEST ,
N STILLMAN ST / $2,900.00
2940 N TAYLOR ST - $3,300.00

17947 N RINGGOLD ST ; Sideyard $3,300,00

PO NS NS N :
R e e R e R e T LN SR S L LA NPT PN ST SEN I PP E P FN PN P P

RS

page 4 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 16 0f 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date Philadelphia Land Bank 16/11/2018

~} CC District lStreet Address : Proposed Use | oA Market Value |
43 | 4 12946 NBAILEYST Sideyard j . $3,100.00 :
44 4 |2953 NBAILEYST .. Sideyard _ . $3,10000
45 | 4 2955 NBAILEYST . ... Sideyard 4 $3100.00 3
46 | 4 2963 NTAYLORST _Sideyard | $3,300.00 |
47 4 |2968NRINGGOLDST ~ Sideyard |  $330000
8 4 3100NNAPAST 1 Sideyard | $5700.00
9 4 3122 N 27THST o Sideyard " $6,300.00
so | 4 |3128NSTILLMANST Sideyard 43,300.00
51| 4 (3323WALLEGHENYAVE | Sideyard | $1370000 |
52 4 5607 MASTER ST ' Sideyard ‘ $4,400.00 |
Page 5 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 17 0f 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date Philadelphia Land Bank 10/11/2018

i€c District | Street Address ‘ Proposed Use 1 OPA Market Value

1 5 11402 N MARSTON ST ] Affordcbfe Housing L ss 200.00 Housing = 167

2 |5 [1403 N PERTH ST N Affordable Housing ~ $18,900.00 -
3, 5 ‘, |1408 N MARSTON ST _ Affordable Housing | $5,200.00 i

4 5 11421 W LETTERLY ST Affordable Housing & SS 600.00 B

5 | 5 11432 N MARSTON ST  Affordable Housing $5,200.00

6 |5 11434 N 27THST _ Affordable Housing $4,500.00

7 5 1438NMARSTONST  ©  Affordable Housing $5,20000 |

8 5 |1441NMARSTONST | Affordable Housing $5,000.00

9 5 1516N25THST _ Affordable Housing $15,100.00

10 5  [1520N25THST Affordable Housing $20,500.00 |

11 5 |1549NOTHST ~ Affordable Housing ~$19,600.00

12 5 1551 NOTHST ~ Affordable Housing $19,400.00

13 5 |1614NBAILEYST Affordable Housing ~ $7,000.00

14 | 5 1724 NLAMBERT ST Affordable Housing | 0.0

15 5 1725N26THST Affordable Housing | $6,200.00

16 5 |1729 N 26THST sing $6,200.00

17 5 1747 N26THST sing $6,20000

18 | 5 |1747 SEYBERTST - Affordable Housing | $17,800.00

19 15 1749 N 26THST | Affordable Housing $6,20000 |

20 5 11750 N CROSKEY ST . Affordable Housing $3,600.00 ,

21 5 |1758 N LAMBERT ST | Affordable Housing $1000000 I

22 5 |1906 N 24TH ST | Affordable Housing 8620000 |

23 .5 1917 NICHOLAS ST  Affordable Housing 4690000

24 5 11919 NICHOLAS ST _ Affordable Housing | $6,600.00

25 5 |1937 NOTHST Affordable Housing 81620000 .

26 | 5 1960 N DARIEN ST . Affordable-Housing $10,500.00 |

27 5 2024 N WOODSTOCK ST Affordable Housing $26,100.00

28 | 5 |2041N19THST | Affordable Housing  ~ $37,40000 |

29 5 2045N19THST _ Affordable Housing  $37,400.00

30 5 [2113 N PERCY ST Affordable Housing  + 815,400.00 |,

31 | 5 »113WOXFORDST | Affordable Housing | $3,000.00

32 5 2129 NI19THST . Affordable Housing $47,500.00 |

33 | 5 |2147NIOTHST __ Affordable Housing $45,700.00

34 e 2201 N STH ST b!e Housing SS SOG OO

35 | 5 [2215NI19THST . Affordable Housing $7,10000

36 | 5 [2219 N UBER Sl’ 3 L Affordable Housing  $9,300.00 ;

37 5 [2227NUBERST | AffordableHousing $930000

38 5 2231 N 19TH ST L. Afordable Housing | 57, 400 00

39 |5 [2231NUBERST | Affordable Housing | $17,300.00 |

40 | 5 12237 INGERSOLLST | ~ Affordable Housing | $6,300.00

a1 s |2237N19THST  Affordable Housing _ $7,20000 |

42 | 5 |2245INGERSOLLST _Affordable Housing $6,900.00 -

43 | 5 2246N19THST = Affordable Housing $5,900.00

44 5 12247N19THST | Affordable Housing $7,200.00 .

45 | 5 [2253N19THST | Affordable Housing | $7,200.00 | -

46 | 5 [2255N19THST = Affordable Housing | §7,200.00

47 | 5 [2265N19THST | Affordable Housing | $7,200.00 -

48 | 5 12326 SEYBERTST § Affordable Housing | $10,000.00 7 - T

49 | 5 |2330WMONTGOMERYAVE |  AffordableHousing | 740000

50 5 2332 W MONTGOMERY AVE | " Affordable Housing $8,900.00 i

Page 6 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 18 0of 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

10/11/2018

| CC District Street Address Proposed Use | OPA Market Value |
5105 ., : $4100.00 |
52 5 Affordable Housing $10,40000
'53‘”» 5 _ Affordabie Housing |
54 | 5 |2429SEVB o Affordable Housing $6,000.00
55 , 5 2434 CLIFFORDST ) Affordable Housing ) W$14 800.00 |
56 5 12443 SEYBERTST _ Affordable Housing $6,000.00 ’
57 5 2524 TURNER ST _ Affordable Housing $4,300.00
58 5 2606 W MONTGOMERY AVE | Affordable Housing | $6,20000 1
59 5 2625 W MONTGOMERY AVE. Affordable Housing $6,400.00 |
60 | 5 12806 CECILBMOOREAVE . Affordable Housing $9,700.00 |
61 . 5  |2913CECILBMOOREAVE | Affordable Housing $8,200.00 |
62 [ 5 3029 CLIFFORD §T Affordable Housing | 57,100.00 |
63 | 5  |3134WGORDONST _  Affordable Housing $2,800.00 |
64 . 5 1623 \N NORRIS ST  Affordable Housing 1+ $23,300 00 ;
65 | 5  910WSUSQUEHANNAAVE | AffordableHousing | $20,900.00 -
66 . 5 912 WSUSQUEHANNAAVE | Affordable Housing ~ $6,200.00
67 . 5 11213 NETTING ST Workforce Housing | $2, 400, 00 )
68 | 5 1240 N 27TH ST ~ Workforce Housing ~ + $2,300.00 i
69 i 5 |1318N27THST ‘Workforce Housing | $10,400.00 |
70 | 5 1400 N27THST Workforce Housing | $3,300.00 |
71 |5 li408 N28THST Workforce Housing | $11,900.00
72 5 |1411N28THST | Workforce Housing $11,900.00 ’
73 ‘ 5 1418 i+ Workforce Housing | $4,500.00 ;
7405 ;142? N 27TH ST Workforce Housing | $4,5 j
SN 5 11437 OGDEN ST Workforce Housing 835, 800. OO ‘
76 5 1450 N 27TH ST ; __ Workforce Housing ) Sl] 000. 00 B
77 5 J1451N 28TH ST Workforce Housing $11,900. 00
78 5 1455 N 28TH ST Workforce Housing - $11,900.00
79 5 |2346N21STST Workforce Housing $7,100.00 )
80 | 5 12700 WCABOTST ~ Workforce Housing ss000
81 5 2704JEFFERSON ST - Workforce Housing ~$6,100.00 :
82 . 5 2706JEFFERSON ST Workforce Housing ~$6,100.00 ) i
83 5 [2720 JEFFERSON ST Workforce Housing | $11,300.00 i o
84 5 1330 N-MARSTON ST ~ Housing - $9,200.00
85 5 [1332NMARSTONST . Housing 1 $5200.00
8 | 5 [1334NMARSTONST THousing 1 $5,20000 |
87 | 5 |1336NMARSTONST Housing | $27,600.00
88 5 |1425NMARSTONST Housing | $5000.00 )
89 5 11426 N MARSTON ST _ Housing $5,200.00 ) o
90 5 1443 N MARSTON ST Housing $5,000,00 )
91 5 1844N27THST | Housing 1 $11,000.00 B
92 . 5 1445NWMARSTONST Housing $5,000.00
93 | 5 1447 N MARSTONST ’ i ~$5,000.00
94 5 |1448N2JTHST Housing  $11,000.00
95 5 l1as9NMARSTONST Housing $5,000.00 )
96 5 12713WFLORA st ~ Housing $7,600.00
97 5 1431 0GDENST Market Rate $35,800.00
98 | 5 |1513NMARSTONST MarketRate | $16,700.00 |
99 5 1536 NMARSTON ST L Market Rate $13,600.00 |
100 5 1635N MARSTON ST Market Rate $7,600.00

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 19 of 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

10/11/2018

| OPA Market Vaiue ‘

| CC District |Street Addreass Proposed Use !
101 © 5 930 N13THST Market Rate b s11,600.00
102 | 5 [932NI3THST T Market Rate I s11,600.00 o B
103 | 5 |1820NMARSHALLST | Development Site | $16,800.00 )
104 | 5 12036 N29THST | Development Site | $5,000.00 - N
105 5 52236 N JTHST , Development Site ; $15, OOO OOH o
106 | 5 2447 SEYBERT ST i DevelopmentSite | $6, 000.00
107 | 512016 RIDGE AVE " Developmentsite | 5490000
. 5 i3222 GERMANTOWNAVE | Commercial | $53,40000 f ~ Commercial =
! 5 ’1614 18 N 22ND ST " Commercial Expansson ) ; 517 100, OO I
5 12259-63 GERMANTOWN AVE( Commercial Site A§§4em,by y | $12,400. 00 !
1 : 5  J1333N27THST i Community Garden . f _ Gardens/Open Space:i‘Oh B
2 5 12506 N llTH ST B Community Garden i i
3 | 5 2526 N10THST  CommunityGarden | $430000 |
4 . 5 12532 NALDERST ' _CommunityGarden . $10,400.00
5 5 725WCUMBERLANDST | CommunityGarden |  $1420000 | )
6 . 5 »7?7 w CUMBERLAND ST. i CommunityGarden | $14 200 00 J
7 | 5 12534 RIDGE AVE | Garden/OpenSpace | $7,700.00 |
8 5 x734 W ALLEGHENY A\/E \ WGarden/Open Space ) o ( )
9 . 5 (3110 WYORKST | Openspace 8290000
10, 5 3112 WYORKST ... OvenSpace [ $2900.00
| 5 |1826N22NDST | CommunityUse | $810000 | Community Use =4
I 5 1848 N Z.ZND ST Community Use - $8,600.00 |
|5 |1850N22NDST CommunitylUse | $8,600.00
5 12424 WLEHIGHAVE Community Use | $14,00000 |
1 5 _‘1046W|ND!ANA AVE Sideyard | $4700.00 . Sideyards =30
2 5 |1235WCAMBRIAST "~ Sideyard | $34,300.00 o
3 . 5 1516 N MYRTLEWOOD ST Sideyard $14,000.00
4 | 5 1727 NSTILLMAN ST Sideyard | $3,100.00
5 . 5 1741 N NEWKIRK ST Sideyard  $11,30000
6 . 5  [1844NTAVLORST ~ Sideyard $17,200.00
7 5 |1943 N CROSKEY ST  Sideyard | $700000 |
8 | 5 |2140N30THST Sideyard | 8560000 |
9 | 5 12166 NFRANKLINST Sideyard . $22,70000 )
10 | 5 12219 WSEDGLEY AVE Sideyard $19,600.00 |
115 |2232NGRATZST b Sideyard $4.900.00
25 12314 W YORK ST ~ Sideyard §700.00
13 5 12334 N 12TH ST Sideyard | 21,9000 |
14 5 2340N19THST i Sideyard $6,600.00 |
15 ] 5 12342 TURNER ST | sideyard $5,90000 | )
16 . 5 12434 N CHADWICK ST Sideyard 8530000
17 5 [2514NICHOLASST Sideyard . $6,600.00 -
18 5 2540 RIDGE AVE Sideyard | 6690000 ]
19 . 5 12561 NMOLEST | Sideyard | s560000 | )
20 | 5 2737 W MONTGOMERY AVE | Sideyard $5,900.00
21 5 2831w HAROLD ST 3 Sideyard ~$5,200.00 § )
22 | 5 12932 WYORKST ; Sideyard $2,200.00 |
23 |5 12937 NGTHST o Sideyard $10,000.00 | o
24 | 5 13526 NWARNOCKST | j Sideyard L $10,70000 | -
25 | 5 [3750 NPERCYST ; Sideyard | s710000 | -
26 | 5 13902 N DELHIST ; Sideyard | $7,100.00
Page 8 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 20 of 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

10/11/2018

£S¥:reet Address

€ District

Proposed Use

Sideyard i

| OPA Market Value |

$12,500.00

27 5 614 W ALLEGHENY AVE
28 |5 (903 WSELTZERST Sideyard . $9,300.00
29 ' 5 920 W STERNER ST Sideyard {  $14,400.00 B
30 ;5 925W DAUPHIN ST Sideyard $23,500.00

Page 9 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 21 of 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

10/11/2018

1 7 — : 5,6¢ |
2{ 7 1264 DIAMOND ST i‘ 7 Affordable Housing . $5,700.00 ‘
3 | 7 |270 DIAMOND ST | Affordable Housing | $8,600.00 | )
4|7 |SISWSUSQUEHANNAAVE | Affordable Housing | $4,800.00 |
5 |7 2120 NREESEST :  Housing $7,00000 |
6 | 7 12122 NREESEST Housing i s700000 |
7 . 7 2124 NREESEST I . s700000
8 | 7  |1910NORANNAST | DevelopmentSite | $12,90000 | i )
g 7 1942 N 3RD ST 1. DevelopmentSite 317 ,000. 00 o
0 7 }1944 N 3RD ST . Development Site _ $17,00000
11 7 11946 N3RDST i Development Site $17,00000 |
12 ‘{ 7 ‘1952 N 3RD ST i Development Site [ $17 OOO 00 i
131 7 1956 N3RDST | DevelopmentSite | $17,000.00 |
14 7 k’2017N BODINE ST | DevelopmentSite  $4700.00
15 7 ,2021 N 3RD ST Developmentrsner b $1a70000 1
16 | 7 57WMONTGOMERYAVE | DevelopmentSite | 17,0000 »
17 4731 DUFFIELD ST 1 commercial Expansion $21,800.00 | ~ Commercial =
|7 |2002NRANDOLPHST | i 00 '
|7 |2012 N RANDOLPH ST [ ~ Commercial Site | $850000 |
i 7 r2036 N RANDOLPH ST | ) Commerc:ai Site B $15 800 OO n
| 7 |2042NRANDOLPHST | Commercial Site | 61820000
: 7 |2015 GERMANTOWN AVE Commercial Site Assembly | $5,400.00 ,
7. |S2GDIAMONDST . CommercialSiteAssembly | $520000
7 ]536 DIAMOND 5T . Commercial Site Assembly $5,300.00 B B
712300 EMERALD ST Community Garden | $15100.00 ' Gardens = 2
7 A23NOTHST _ Community Garden . $7,00000 |
1 7 [110E WISHARTST ~Sideyard ideyard =34
2 7 [1944NSTHST Sideyard | $17,600.00 B o
37 J2032 N LEITHGOW ST Sideyard ; $11,80000 1
4 7 2054 N5THST Sideyard | 41540000
5 7 [215NRANDOLPHST | Sideyard L $740000
6 | 7 217ELIPPINCOTTST ’ Sideyard | 3460000
7 .7 |2309PALETHORPST  Sideyard _ | $8,600.00
8 . 7 [2BANSTHST .Sideyard . $510000
o 7 |237WTHAYERST idey o $6,700.00 :
w7 \ZSOWTHAYER ST Sideyard $6,700.00 1
27 |2751 KENSINGTON AVE Sideyard | 560,000.00 |
18 | 7 2821 NHOWARDST . Sideyard | §11,400.00 |
14 © 7 12823 NSWANSONST ‘ Sideyard ~$7,300.00 )
15 7 12832 NORKNEYST | ‘ ) o $1,800.00 o
16 | 7 [290INGTHST Sldeyard o $3,800.00 -
17 7. |2923 N ORIANNAST Cs700000 ) )
18 7 |2950 NORKNEYST ~ Sideyard $48,70000 |
19 7 301 W SUSQUEHANNA AVE  Sideyard $7,20000 |
20 ;7 13067 N LAWRENCE ST Sideyard $7,400.00 |
27 Tl HURLEY ST Sideyard _$6400.00 i
22 .7 3145 CUSTERST  Sideyard 730000 | -
23 7 13247 TAMPA ST Sideyard $8,200.00
24 . 7 |3338AST Sideyard . $13,400.00 B

| ¢ District

[Street Address

258 DIAMOND ST

‘ Affordable Housmg '

_Housing =16

Page 10 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 22 of 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

10/11/2018

L €C District Istreet Address ; Prc osed Use OPA Market Value

25+ 7 [3340HST  Sideyard $9,20000

26 | 7 - [3415TAMPAST _ Sideyard - $5,400.00 |

27 © 7 3432NBODINEST _ Sideyard $6,800.00 |

28 |7 3465 DILLMANST _ Sideyard $4,300.00 | ’
29 |7 I3515N7THST o _ Sideyard | $1250000 |

30 L...7..  A2BDIAMONDST ... Sideyard $550000 |

31 ; 7 |4830NPENNST = Sideyard $25,600.00 |

32 | 7 l611WVENANGOST ~ Sideyard  $57,600.00

33 |7 631 WTIOGAST  Sideyard - $7,00000 |

34 17 |6A4ELIPPINCOTTST Sideyard $7,300.00

1 8 1740 W ERIE AVE __Affordable Housing Housiné =15

2 |8 13235 N WOODSTOCK ST _Affordable Housing | ¢ . o

3 8 14317 N HICKS ST Affordable  Housing ~$4,300. :

4 8 ;’6119 N BEECHWOOD ST i Affordabie Housing ; 516, 500.00 .

5 | 8 [1430-32 W GLENWOOD AVE. | Housing | s340000 .

6 . 8 1434 GLENWOOD AVE J Housing i $240000

7 . 8 1736 WCOURTLANDST | ~ Housing $6,100.00 |

8 | 8 1826 WONTARIOST T ~ Housing $8,500.00

9 | 8  ‘|206EPRICEST Housing_ | s5820000 |

10 | 8 |2118-20W GODFREY AVE Housing . $37,00000

11 0 8 [343-45SHEDAKERST | _ Housing $7,300.00

12 i 8 15062 N 7TH ST Housing ) L $11,100.00 ) ‘

13 8  2247WSOMERSETST = DevelopmentSite ' $2,800.00 |

14 8 4560 NBOUVIERST | DevelopmentSite |  $590000 |

15 . 8 5320 WAYNEAVE Development Site $17,10000

" | 8 48170LDYORKRD ; Commercial Site $15,00000 | Comm/Mixed Use =2

.8 |6060 LIMEKILN PIKE ; $126,500.00 | -

1 ! & 1743 W ONTARIOST i Sideyard | $7,40000 |

2. 8 [1820WROCKLAND ST j Sideyard | $7,600.0 .

3 ., 8  2821JUDSONST  Sideyard 51,1000 :

4 8 2919 N23RDST - Sideyard $2,40000

5 | 8 |2953 NHICKS ST J ~ Sideyard $4,00000 | )
6 (8 13018 NWOODSTOCKST ' _ Sideyard

7| 8 [s312N21sTsST ; Sideyard L )
8 | 8 14465 NI1OTHST é Sideyard | L

9 8 4807NFRANKLNST sideyard | $10,00000 |

10 | 8 5540 DEVONST ~ Sideyard $16,700.00 -

11 | 8 5618 HEISKELLST i Sideyard $4,40000 | ) i
12 8 15642 HEISKELL ST Sideyard $4,30000

Page 11 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 23 of 26



Tax Acquisitions to Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

10/11/2018

’J‘ CC District }rStreet Address

(6605 N UBERST

Proposed Use

Housing

6607 N UBER ST
|1937 67TH AVE

Housing

| OPA Market Value

_$8,100.00

$8,100.00

Sideyard _

16710 WOOLSTON AVE

0929 ELLICOTT RD

Sideyard

| $10,400.00
$8,400‘OQ

_ $50,000.00

| ! f |

41 f : |

: ! T i
. , R ,,,,} .

| i H

| | |

I

f

&

Housing = 2

_ Sideyard =

Page 12 of 12

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018

Page 24 of 26



ReportDater - 107132038
. FOTAL
N ‘ & : ; 2 g8
Side Yard 0 i o 0 & 4] 5 i ] [ 13 Loty
Pre-Planning 0 1 Q0 4] 4 0 1 Q 0 0 6
Package Preparation 4] 0 O 0 G 4] o] Q g 4] [
Posting 1] o Q 0 g g [ 4] 4] o 1]
Developer Selection 4 0 g &} 4] a 2 0 0 4] 2
Disposition Approvals a 4] 0 0 2 [s] O 0 0 0 2
Settlement Y Y 0 0 g 0 2 1 g [¢] 3
Cancelled 0 [ 0 O 1 4 1 0 0 0 2
Housing/Mixed Use 1 24 8 0 168 o 94 4] [ ] 295 Units
30% or below of AMI 0 0 0 0 20 0 5 a 0 0 25
Pre-Planning 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0
Package Preparation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Posting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Selection 4] 0 0 Q 0 a 5 o 0 [y 5
Disposition Approvals 0 0 [} 0 20 4] 0 0 0 0 20
Settlement 0 4 0 0 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0
Cancelled 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
31 % to 60% of AMI 0 0 0 Y] 101 4] 45 0 0 0 146
Pre-Planning 0 0 Q o] 0 0 0 0 - 0 0 0
Package Preparation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y] 0 0
Posting 0 0 0 0 4] G Q 0 0 0 0
Developer Selection 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 0 45
Disposition Approvals 0 Q 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 17
Settlernent [ 0 0 0 84 0 1] 0 0 0 84
Cancelled Y] 4 0 [¢] 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0
61% to 120% of AMI 8 20 7 a 34 0 6 g 0 g &7
Pre-Planning G 4 0 a a O 13 Q 0 G &
Pzckage Preparation & a i 4 4 5] O 4] o 4 o
Posting 0 g 0 G Y 0 G a 0 4] g
Developer Selection 0 g 0 Y o 0 0O 0 4 0 ¢
Disposition Approvals 0 g 4 0 8 g g a 0 0 8
Settiement 0 20 7 0 26 0 0 [¢] 4 0 53
Cancelled Q 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4]
Non-incame Restricted 1 4 1 0 13 0 38 Y] 0 0 57
Pre-Planning 0 0 0 0 1 [} 1 0 0 0 2
Package Preparation J¢] 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Posting 0 [¢] 0 [¢] ] 0 "] 0 0 0 0
Developer Selection 1 4] 1 0 0 0 37 0 0 o 39
Disgosition Approvals 1] 4 0 [¢] 8 0 ¢ 0 Q 0 12
Settlement 0 0 0 Q 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
Cancelled O 0 0 [¢] 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Business Expansion 0 1 1 1 2 0 2 0 [ 0 7 Lots
Pre-Planning 0 1 0 1 0 G G 0 0 0 2
Package Preparation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Posting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Selection 0 0 1 0 2 0 1] 0 0 0 3
Disposition Approvals 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 o 0 0
Settlement 0 a g 3] 0 4] 2 1] ¢ 0 2
Cancelled 0 Q 0 g 0 4] [¢] 0 0 ] 0
Garden/Open Space 1 ] 2 4] 4 ] iL ] ] 1] 18 Lots
Pre-Planning 1 Q 1 0 1 4] 8 4] 0 [¢] i1 -
Package Preparation O 4] 9 0 4] 4 [¢] 4 G O 0
Posting 4 6 4 4] 1] G 0 0 4 O ¢
Developer Selection 0 4] 1 0 1 o 2 0 0 [ 4
Disposition Approvals 0 0O 0 Y 1 g 0 Y 0 0 1
Settlemnent 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 2
Cancelled 0 0 0 0 4] 1] Z 0 0 0 2
Unkiown 3 48 ¥ 0 g [ 2 ¢ g [} 63 Lots
Pre-Planning 4] 46 0 0 2 G 2 o 0 0 50
Package Preparation 0 0 4 0 1] G 4] 0 0 0 0
Posting & Q i [ s o (] 0 o] 0 12
Developer Selection o 2 0 0 i 0 0 0 0 0 3
Disposition Approvals [¢] [¢] 0 a ¢ 0 G [ 0 0 0
Settlement 0 0 0 0 G ] 0 0 0 0 0
Cancelled 0 Y 0 0 0 4 o] % 0 0 0 0
-] st G
Total Pipeline [ 188 [ 1] 0

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 10/11/2018 Page 25 of 26



Dispositions to Date

Philadelphia Land Bank

10/11/2018
Councit No. of Housing
Property Address / Project Name District Purchaser Lots Units Date Settled Price Notes

3 1119 W Cumberland St 7 P. Rivera 1 NA 8/31/2018 S1|sideyard
2 _jand 663 N 11th St; 1022 Melon St; 1110-14 Wallace 5 WP Homes, tiC 13 22 8/24/2018 $4,6001{120% AMI) homeownership
3 14546 N Marvine St 8 3 NA 8/22/2018 $1isideyard
4 13250 Hartville St 7 R. Martinez 1 NA 8/1/2018 Siisideyard
5 {415, 417 and 419 W Berks St 7 LDC Development LLC 3 & 7/13/2018 $226,000 multi-family market rate homeownership
6 {2860 N Leithgow St 7 1. Matos-Casiro 1 NA 7/13/2018 Siisideyard
7 12933 Diamond St 5 Kornegay Properties, LLC 1 2 3/19/2018 $14,826| multi-fariily market rate rental
8 |1443 N Dover 5t 5 O. Johnson 1 NA 3/2/2018 $1isideyard
2 11824 Ridge Ave 5 Lelia 2008, LLC 1 3 12/12/2017 $175,000] multi-farmily market rate homeownership
18 |819-21 N Uber St 5 LBC Development LLO 1 6 11/9/2017 $302,500 multi-family market rate homeownership
11 1832, 836 and 838 N 16th St 5 SDG N 16th St, LLC 3 7 S/14/2017 $435,000]mixed single-family and multi-family workforce housing
12 | 2440 Waterloo St 7 M. Melendez 1 NA 8/28/2017 $18,624]sideyard
13 {616 Emily St 1 Red Brick Homes, LLC 1 1 8/24/2017 $65,000]single-family market rate homeownership
14 |St; 1214 N'27th St 5 Etting Street Holdings, LLC 8 2] 8/24/2017 $151,000{{120% AM1) and marke: rate homeownership
15 {138 W Thompson St 5 BMK Properties, L1C 1 i 8/23/2017 $55,245 single-family market rate homeownership

803, 805, 807, 809, 811 and 813 W Berks St; 1903,

1509, 1811, 1927, 1929, 2012, 2018, 2030, 2032 and

2034 N Darien St; 2000-12, 2014, 2022, 2026, 2028,

2030 and 2066 N Franklin St; 804, 812, 814, 816 and

818 W Norris St; 1914, 19186, 2050 and 2052 N 7th St;

1900, 1802, 1904, 1906, 1910, 1942, 1960, 2028, 2053

and 2055 N 8th St; 1901, 1903, 1905, 1915, 1317, Philadelphia Housing Authority, for

1925, 1933, 1943, 1945, 1947-49,1951, 1955, 1959, Norris Choice Neighborhood
16 |1961, 1963, 2041, 2043, 2045 N 9th St 5 Initiative &0 89 7/12/2017 S1{multi-family low-income (30% and 60% AMI) rentals
17 11938 and 1942 N Darien St 5 Yuhan Holdings, tiC 2 NA 6/28/2017 “$2]AMil) housing project
18 {2208 Mascher St 7__1l.Santa 1 NA 5/16/2017 $10,476{sideyurd
19 12329 Mutter St 7 11 Rosario NA 5/4/2017 $6,283]sideyard
20 12341 Leithgow St 7 E. Sterra NA 5/4/2017 $23,5301sideyard
231 11314 N Dover St L . : . 5 SVM Development 1 4/13/2017 $45,000 single-family market rate homeownership
22 11307 N Newkirk St, 1437 Dover 5t, 2715 Cabot St - 1RAZA Homes, LLC 3 4/12/2047 589,000} single-family market rate homeownership

836 and 844 N 15th St; 715 N 20th St; 1907, 1908 and f I T v S .
23 11917 Brown St; 867 N Uber $t 5 Civelta P/.Pcm;«\ m_d:_P LLC 7 7 3/21j2017 -$7,000]single-family workforce hou ym homeownérship
22 {1140 Mount Vernon St S G. Clarke, R. Colfins . 1 1 1/26/2017 $130,000] single-family market rate homeowners ¥ ’
25 {2915 W Oakdale St s P. Stamps 1 1 1/5/2017 $12,500]single-family warkforce housing (120% AMI}

TOTALS : S e 16 . S

FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 98 $ 1,447,801.00
FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 18 $  323,791.00

Page 26 of 26

tors 10/11/2018

reCl

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of D



To:
From: Steve Cusano, Esq.
Date: November 13, 2018

Re:

L N D B AN K 1234 Market St., 17* Floor, Philadelphia PA 19107
philadelphialandbank.org

MEMORANDUM —

Board of Directors

Resolution Amending the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank (Officer
Nominations/Appointment of Committee Members/Nomination of Eleventh Member)

Each member of the Board was provided a copy of the attached Resolution by email on November 2

2018, which is at least ten (10) days prior to today's meeting as required by Article VI of the Bylaws.

The attached Resolution proposes certain amendments to the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank

("Bylaws"). All words in the Resolution shown with a strikethrough (strikethrough) are deletions and
all words underlined and italicized (underlined and italicized) are additions.

Below is a summary of these amendments

Section 101

This change is to define the term “Eleventh Member”.

’Section 201

Establishes a process for nominating a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer, which-will be managed
by a newly formed Nominating Committee (see 310(c) below), in accordance with the following.
o Nominations must be received no later than two (2) weeks prior to elections.
o Board members can nominate themselves or another Board member.
o Board members nominated by another Board member must accept their nomination to be a candidate.
o Each Board member will vote for their preferred candidate for each position.
= This is subject to Section 301, which provides that members may only participate in meetings by
being physically present. Conference telephone or similar communications equipment, any
Internet application, and voting by proxy are not permitted. '
o The candidate receiving the most votes for each position will be the winner.
o Inthe event of a tie for any position, a tie breaker vote will be held between the tied candidates. Any
tie following a tie-breaker vote will be decided by a coin flip.
o Ifan office is vacated, the position may be filled during a regular meeting of the Board in accordance
with this Section 201.

Section 310(a)

The deleted portion is now included in Section 310(b).



November 13, 2018
Resolution Amending the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank (Officer Nominations/Appointment of
Committee Members/Nomination of Eleventh Member)

Section 310(b)

e FEstablishes a process for which the Chair appoints persons and alternates to serve on each committee in
consultation with the Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer. This does not apply to the Nominating
Committee (see 310(c) below).

o Number of Board members serving on a committee must always be less than a quorum of the Board.

o The Chair shall endeavor, as is reasonably possible, to appoint an equal distribution of those Board
members appointed by the Mayor and those appointed by City Council on each committee.

o No Board member shall serve on more than two (2) standing committees excluding the Nomination
Committee. :

o The members of each committee shall determine the committee chairperson in their discretion, except

that the Treasurer shall serve as chairperson of the Finance Committee.

Section 310(b)

e Establishes a Nominating Committee as a standing committee with the purpose of establishing a process
by which nominations for Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, and the Eleventh Member will be made
and accepted and to oversee all elections in accordance with Sections 101 and 201 of the Bylaws.

e The members consist of: (i) the highest-ranking officer appointed to the Board by City Council; (ii) the
highest-ranking officer appointed to the Board by the Mayor; and (iii) the Eleventh Member. For purposes
of this Section 310(c), the officer ranking beginning with the highest is as follows: Chair, Vice Chair,

Secretary, and Treasurer.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BYLAWS
OF THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

WHEREAS, section 309 of the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Bylaws'")
provides that the Bylaws may be amended by a majority of the entire Board of Directors.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") deems it
necessary and in the best interest of the Philadelphia Land Bank to amend the Bylaws pursuant to
this Resolution.

WHEREAS, each member of the Board was provided this Resolution at least ten (10) days
prior to the meeting at which this Resolution is to be voted upon in accordance with Article VI of
the Bylaws.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. All words shown with a strikethrough (steikethreugh) are hereby removed from the Bylaws.
All words underlined and italicized (underlined and italicized) are hereby added to the
Bylaws.

2. Section 101 of the Bylaws is hereby amended as follows:

“The affairs and activities of the Philadelphia Land Bank ("Land Bank") shall be managed
and controlled and its powers exercised by a Board of Directors (the "Board"), except as
otherwise provided by statute or these Bylaws. The Board shall be composed of eleven (11)
members: five (5) members shall be appointed by the Mayor of the City of Philadelphia
(“Mayor”); five (5) members shall be appointed by majority vote of all the members of the
Council of the City of Philadelphia (“City Council”); and one (1) member shall be appointed
by majority vote of the other members of the Board (*‘Eleventh Member”). As used in these
bylaws, (i) the phrase "entire Board of Directors" means the total number of Board members
that the Land Bank would have if there were no vacancies.”

3. Section 201 of the Bylaws is hereby amended as follows:

“The Board shall elect from among its members a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer and
other officers as the Board determines at the Annual Meeting of the Board. The officers so duly
elected shall hold office for one year or until their successors are appointed and qualified.
Nominations for Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer must be submitted to the
Nominating Committee, as established pursuant to Section 310(c), no later than two (2) weeks
prior to elections. Board members can nominate themselves or another Board member. Board
members nominated by another Board member must accept their nomination to be a candidate.
Subject to Section 301 of these Bylaws, each Board member will vote for their preferred
candidate for each position. The candidate receiving the most votes for each position will be the




winner. _In the event of a tie for any position, a tie breaker vote will be held between the tied
candidates. _Any tie following a tie-breaker vote will be decided by a coin flip. If an office is
vacated, the position may be filled during a regular meeting of the Board in accordance with this
Section 201. Any officer may be removed from office by a majority vote of the entire Board of
Directors for failure to fulfill his or her duties as an officer.”

4. Section 310 of the Bylaws is hereby amended as follows:

“(a) The Board may designate one or more standing and ad hoc committees, with each
committee consisting of one or more Board members and may include 1nd1v1duals who are not
members of the Board. &

(b) Except for the Nomination Committee which is established pursuant to Section 310(c), the

Chair shall appoint persons to serve on each committee (and may designate one or more persons
as alternate members of a committee, who may replace an absent or disqualified member at a
meeting of the committee) in accordance with the following: (i) appointments to each committee
shall be made in consultation with the Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer; (ii) the number of
Board members serving on a committee must always be less than a quorum of the Board; (iii) the
Chair shall endeavor, as is reasonably possible, to appoint an equal distribution of those Board
members appointed by the Mayor and those appointed by City Council on each committee; (iv) no
Board member shall serve on more than two (2) standing committees excluding the Nomination
Committee; and (v) the members of each committee shall determine the committee chairperson in
their discretion, except that the Treasurer shall serve as chairperson of the Finance Committee.

(¢) A Nomination Committee is hereby established as a standing committee. The members of the
Nominating Committee shall consist of the following: (i) the highest-ranking officer appointed to
the Board by City Council; (ii) the highest-ranking officer appointed to the Board by the Mayor;
and (iii) the Eleventh Member. For purposes of this Section 310(c), the officer ranking beginning
with the highest is as follows: Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer. The Nomination
Committee shall establish a process by which nominations for Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary,
Treasurer, and the Eleventh Member will be made and accepted. The Nomination Committee
shall also oversee all elections in accordance with Sections 101 and 201 of these Bylaws.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 ~

RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER
CERTIFICATES OF COMPLETION, LEASE AGREEMENTS, AND LICENSE
AGREEMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

WHEREAS, from time to time, it may be necessary or desirable to grant an individual or entity the
exclusive right for a term to access and utilize real property owned by the Philadelphia Land Bank
(“Land Bank”) pursuant to a written agreement (each "Lease");

WHEREAS, from time to time, it may be necessary or desirable to allow an individual or entity
non-exclusive, revocable access and use of real property owned by the Land Bank pursuant to a written
agreement (each "License Agreement");

WHEREAS, the Land Bank's Purchase and Development Agreement (the "PDA") provides that
after the developer’s completion of the improvements in accordance with the PDA and compliance
with certain other requirements contained in the PDA, the Land Bank shall record a certificate of
completion (each "Certificate of Completion"), subject to certain terms and conditions.

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need for prompt and timely management decisions and
believes that the efficiency of the Land Bank’s operations will be enhanced if the Board delegates to
the Executive Director, subject to the terms and conditions of this Resolution, the authority to approve,
execute, deliver, and, as necessary, record (i) any and all Leases, License Agreements, and Certificates
of Completion; (ii) any and all agreements, contracts, instruments, certifications, attestations, and other
documents incidental to any Lease, License Agreement, or Certificate of Completion (each
“Transaction Document”); and (iii) any and all amendments, modifications, extensions, and
supplements to any Lease, License Agreement, Certificate of Completion, and Transaction Document
(each “Amendment”).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") that:

1. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Resolution, the Executive Director is hereby authorized,
from time to time, on behalf of the Land Bank to approve, execute, deliver, and, as necessary,
record Leases, License Agreements, Certificates of Completion, Transaction Documents, and
Amendments, which the Executive Director deems necessary or desirable.

2. Each Lease, License Agreement, Certificate of Completion, Transaction Document, and
Amendment shall contain such terms and conditions which the Executive Director, with the advice
of Senior Counsel, deems necessary or desirable.

3. Each Lease is subject to the following:
a. A Lease shall be for a term of no more than one (1) year including any extensions. Any and all
extensions after the expiration of the initial (1) year period requires Board approval.
b. As applicable, compliance with Section 16-707(1) and 16-707(6) of the Philadelphia Code.
¢. The authority granted in this Resolution with respect to each Lease is limited by Section 108 of
the Bylaws and Section 16-707(3) of the Philadelphia Code.
d. Senior Counsel has approved the form and substance of the Lease.

1



4. Each License Agreement is subject to the following:
a. A License Agreement shall be for a term of no more than one (1) year including any extensions.
Any and all extensions after the expiration of the initial (1) year period requires Board approval.
b. Fach License Agreement must (i) provide that possession is non-exclusive; (ii) be revocable at
will upon no more than thirty (30) days written notice; (iii) be drafted in such a way as to not
convey any estate, title, or interest in real estate.
c. Senior Counsel has approved the form and substance of the License Agreement.

5. Each Certificate of Completion is subject to the following:

a. The Executive Director must receive a completed inspection report signed off by, at least, the
inspector; the projector manager; and the Land Bank legal department indicating, at a minimum,
(1) whether all improvements have been completed in accordance with the PDA; (ii) whether
there are any defaults by the developer/purchaser under the PDA or any other document
applicable to the Land Bank; and (iii) whether any outstanding issues were noted by the
Department of Licenses & Inspections with respect to the improvements.

b. The Executive Director may, in his sole discretion, grant a Certificate of Completion if the
developer/purchaser guarantees, with adequate assurance, that all defaults under the PDA and all
outstanding issues noted by the Department of Licenses & Inspections will be promptly
addressed.

c. Senior Counsel has approved the form and substance of the Certificate of Completion.

6. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel shall report at each regular Board meeting, on a cumulative
basis, any Leases, License Agreements, Certificates of Completion, and Amendments executed and
delivered pursuant to this Resolution since the immediately preceding regular Board meeting.

7. The Executive Director may permit any of those Land Bank staff authorized to execute and deliver
certain documents on behalf of the Land Bank pursuant to Resolution 2017-43 to execute and deliver
any Lease, License Agreement, Certificate of Completion, Transaction Document, and Amendment
pursuant to, and in accordance with, this Resolution.

8. The Executive Director, with the advice of Senior Counsel, may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior
Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting
following the date of such modifications.

9. The approval, execution, delivery, and recording of any Lease, License Agreement, Certificate of
Completion, and Transaction Document by the Executive Director, or the Director of Real Estate,
prior to the effectiveness of this Resolution is hereby ratified and confirmed.

10. Resolution 2017-53 is hereby rescinded.

1'1. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.



i EPHILADELPHIA
== LAND BANK  menreist oo ruissennians o
—— MEMORANDUM

To:  Board of Directors

From: Steve Cusano, Esq. .

Date: November 13, 2018 _

Re:  Resolution Appreving Assignment and Assumption of Notes and Mortgages from the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Philadelphia Land Bank

The Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("PRA") is granted notes and mortgages in
connection with the conveyance of real estate by PRA or the City of Philadelphia (collectively,
“Notes and Mortgages™).

The purpose of the attached Resolution is to authorize the Executive Director, from time to
time, to enter into assignment and assumption agreements so that these Notes and Mortgages can be
assigned to, and assumed by, the Land Bank.

The Resolution further authorizes the Executive Director to execute and deliver all
agreements, contracts, instruments, certifications, attestations, and other documents necessary or
desirable (collectively, “Transaction Documents™) to consummate an assignment and assumption of
any Notes and Mortgages. The Transaction Documents will contain such terms and conditions
which the Executive Director, with the advice of Senior Counsel, deems necessary or desirable.

Lastly, the assignment and assumption of any Notes and Mortgages shall be at no cost to the
Land Bank, except for those costs to prepare and record the Transaction Documents.

I recommend that the Board approve the attached Resolution.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -
RESOLUTION APPROVING ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF
NOTES AND MORTGAGES FROM THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY TO THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("PRA") is granted notes and

mortgages in connection with the conveyance of real estate by PRA or the City of Philadelphia
(collectively, “Notes and Mortgages”).

WHEREAS, PRA wishes, from time to time, to assign Notes and Mortgages to the Philadelphia

Land Bank (“Land Bank”).

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Board”) has determined

that accepting assignments of Notes and Mortgages from PRA is in the best interests of the Land Bank.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the

Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1.

The Executive Director is hereby authorized, from time to time, to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Land Bank all agreements, contracts, instruments, certifications, attestations, and other
documents necessary or desirable (collectively, “Transaction Documents™) to consummate the
assignment and assumption of any Notes and Mortgages in accordance with this Resolution. The
Transaction Documents shall contain such terms and conditions which the Executive Director, with
the advice of Senior Counsel, deems necessary or desirable.

The assignment and assumption of any Notes and Mortgages pursuant to this Resolution shall be at
no cost to the Land Bank, except for those costs to prepare and record the Transaction Documents.

The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to catry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior
Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting
following the date of such modifications.

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.



o LA N D B A N K 1234 Market St., 17 Floor, Philadelphia PA 19107
| philadelphialandbank.org

MEMORANDUM

To:  Board of Directors

From: Marla Clark

Date: November 7, 2018 :

Re:  Approval of FY 2018 Audited Financial Statements

Mercadien, P.C., the Land Bank's independent auditors, has finalized the annual financial audit for
the year ending June 30, 2018.

» Mercadien issued an Unqualified "Clean" Opinion of the Land Bank's financial statements
* No Findings were reported

» No material weaknesses were noted in internal controls

 The Land Bank complied with all Governmental Auditing Standards

Staff requests that the Board accept Mercadien's Independent Audit Report.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Act, 68 Pa.C.S.A. § 2101, ef seq., requires the Philadelphia
Land Bank to prepare an annual financial audit for submission to the Department of Community
and Economic Development and Philadelphia City Council;

WHEREAS, the Land Bank has engaged the audit firm of Mercadien, P.C., Certified
Public Accountants, to audit the Land Bank’s financial statements for Fiscal Year 2018;

WHEREAS, Mercadien has issued its Independent Auditor’s Report; and

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Board has reviewed, and desires to accept, the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report of the Philadelphia Land Bank issued by Mercadien,
P.C., Certified Public Accountants for Year Ended June 30, 2018 is hereby accepted.

2. Land Bank staff is directed to submit the Auditor’s Report to the Department of
Community and Economic Development and to Philadelphia City Council as required
by the Land Bank Act.

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia,
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Financial Statements
and
Supplementary Information

June 30, 2018



PHILADELPHIA LLAND BANK
City of Phiiadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

TABLE OF CONTENTS
June 30, 2018

Page
Number
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited .............................. JUUTOUPUPNPR 1
Independent AUItors’ RepPOrt . ... ettt e e 11
Basic Financial Statements
Statements of Net POSItION ......c.ovoi e 14
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.........ccccccevecciiivieieevnnen, 15
StAteMENtS OFf CASN FIOWS ...........vvevereeeceseeseseseeesee e eeees s ee e eee et ee s es e eseese e e 16
Notes to Financial Statements ... 17
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Payments to Other City AQENCTIES .......coii i e eeee e e e 25
Schedule of Capital ASSELS .......oeiiiiiii e s 26

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards................ 27



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Our discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Philadelphia Land Bank (‘Land Bank”)
provides an overview of the Land Bank’s significant financial activities for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2018 and 2017. Please read it in conjunction with the attached financial statements for a
comprehensive understanding of the reports.

Overview and Use of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements
of the Land Bank. The annual financial report is comprised of three components: management's
discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements (including related notes to the financial
statements), and supplemental schedules required by the City of Philadelphia (the “City”).

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the finances of the
Land Bank in a manner similar to private-sector business. These statements are prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as
applied to governmental units on the accrual basis. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned, while expenses are recognized in the period they
are incurred. Depreciation of capital assets is recognized in the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position.

The Land Bank is considered to be a governmental unit. As a result, the format of the attached
financial statements conforms with GAAP as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The statements of net position present information on all of the Land Bank’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
Land Bank’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating,
respectively. To assess the overall health of the Land Bank, you need to also consider non-financial
factors such as the Land Bank’s ability to continue receiving funding from the City, City Council’'s
willingness to transfer properties into the Land Bank inventory, and the Administration’s willingness to
provide resources to facilitate the operations of the Land Bank. :

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present information on how the
Land Bank’s net position at June 30, 2018 and 2017, is derived.

The statements of cash flows provide information about the sources and uses of cash during the fiscal
year.

Basic Financial Statements

The Land Bank’s audited Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position, and Statements of Cash Flows are presented on pages 14 through 16.



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Assets
The Land Bank's total assets as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:
2018 2017 2016 % Change
Current
Cash $ 2437517 $ 3,040,536 $ 1,307,054 -20%
Accounts Receivable 864,026 349,353 793,242 147%
Prepaid Assets - - 210 0%
Non-Current
Property Held for Development or Sale 25,590,211 25,884,936 9,702,134 -1%
Capital Assets 23,959 35,373 46,788 -32%
Total Assets $ 28915713 $ 29,310,198 $ 11,849,428 -1%

2018
Total assets at June 30, 2018, reflected a net decrease of approximately $394 thousand from the prior

year. The Land Bank acquired 43 properties during the fiscal year from the City of Philadelphia’s
Department of Public Property (1) from the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (“PRA™ (7), from
Sheriff Sales — tax foreclosure (35), totaling a book value of approximately $843 thousand. Property
held for development or sale accounts for approximately 88% of total assets with a valuation of
approximately $25.6 Million. The Land Bank sold eighteen (18) properties during the fiscal year. The
Land Bank continues to utilize the City of Philadelphia’s Office of Property Assessment pricing model
to determine the. valuation “pricing” of its properties. This methodology will be reassessed in 2019,
coupled with consideration for establishing an impairment allowance, if the Land Bank continues to
maintain ownership of these properties for an extended period of time.

Total properties acquired and the entity of origin as of the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and
20186, consisted of the following:

2018 2017 2016

Properties Acguired

PHDC - 134 585
PRA 7 162 -
City of Philadelphia (Public Properties) 1 - 673 427
Sheriff Sales 35 30 -
Private - 1 -
Total Properties 43 1,000 1,012

Cash on hand decreased by approximately 20% from June 30, 2017, to approximately $2.4 million.
Accounts receivable accounted for approximately $864 thousand and 3% of total assets.
Approximately $108 thousand of this balance is due from the PRA and pertains to net sales proceeds
from the Vacant Property Review Committee ('VPRC”) and personnel costs for shared employee.
PRA administered this program which controls the disposition of city owned property during the fiscal
year on behalf of Land Bank.



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Assets {Continued)

The remaining receivable balance of approximately of $756 thousand pertains to 72 VPRC purchase
money mortgages totaling approximately $701 thousand transferred from PRA. With twenty-eight
(28) purchase money mortgages issued during the fiscal year totaling approximately $336 thousand
for fiscal year 2018 (with the expectation that minimal proceeds will be received as these mortgages
are self-amortizing over a ten-year period.).

2017

Total assets at June 30, 2017, reflected a net increase of approximately $17.5 million from the prior
year. The Land Bank acquired 1,000 properties with a book value of approximately $16.2 million
accounting for approximately 88% of total assets. The Land Bank adopted the City of Philadelphia’s
Office of Property Assessment pricing model to determine the valuation “pricing” of its properties.

Cash on hand increased by approximately 133% from June 30, 2016, to $3 million. Accounts
receivable accounted for approximately $349 thousand and 1% of total assets. Approximately $288
thousand of this balance is due from the PRA and pertains to net sales proceeds from the VPRC.
PRA administered this program which controls the disposition of city owned property from January 1
through June 30, 2017, on behalf of Land Bank. The remaining receivable balance of approximately
$61.5 thousand is derived from four purchase money mortgages issued during the fiscal year totaling
approximately $44 thousand.

The remaining receivable balance of approximately $756 thousand pertains to 72 VPRC purchase
money mortgages totaling approximately $701 thousand transferred from PRA. With twenty-eight
(28) purchase money mortgages issued during the fiscal year totaling approximately $336 thousand
for fiscal year 2018 (with the expectation that minimal proceeds will be received as these mortgages
are self-amortizing over a ten-year period.).

Liabilities
The Land Bank’s total liabilities as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

2018 2017 2016 % Change
Current v
Accounts Payable $ 2136 3 126,261 $ 167,388 -98%
Escrows Payable 31,611 14,000 - 100%
Accrued Liabilities 390,860 46,652 286,121 738%
Compensated Absences 58,036 42,061 31,907 38%
Intercompany Payable - - 156,385 0%
Unearned Revenue 1,578,353 2,836,642 1,455,495 -44%
Total Liabilities $ 2080996 § 3065616 § 2097296 -33%

2018
At June 30, 2018, total liabilities decreased by approximately $1 million (33%) to approximately $2.1
million, primarily consisting of:

e Accounts payable obligations of approximately $2 thousand which is primarily timing difference
from recording of deeds payments.



PHILADEL.PHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Liabilities (Continued)

Escrow payables increased by approximately $18 thousand. Land Bank received twenty-three
security escrow deposits totaling $29 thousand which will be repaid to the developer(s) upon the
issuance of construction completion certificates.

Accrued administrative expenses and contractual obligations as of June 30, 2018, for
approximately $390 thousand. Comprised of $232 thousand in payroll costs which include Land
Bank’s direct payroll accrual, PRA and PHDC salary direct and indirect costs. $97 thousand legal
and appraisal fees, and $39 thousand audit fees, and $15 thousand due to the Department of
Housing and Community Development (‘“DHCD”) for reimbursable operating expenses and $7
thousand for stormwater charges.

Compensated absences increased by approximately 38% to $58 thousand as the Land Bank’s
staff increased by four full time employees and existing staff accrued additional time.
Approximately $1.6 million of unearned revenue at June 30,.2018, went unexpended. The balance
of this funding will remain under the Land Bank’s budget authority and will be rolled over into
Fiscal Year 2019's approved funding allocation. This represents a 44% decrease from the period
ending June 30, 2017.

2017 _ -
At June 30, 2017, total liabilities increased by approximately $968 thousand (46%) to approximately
$3.1 million, primarily consisting of:

Accounts payable obligations of approximately $126 thousand. Of which $123 thousand is due to
PHDC for reimbursement of June 2017 monthly salary and indirect cost allocation.

The Land Bank received nine security escrow deposits totaling $14 thousand which will be repaid
to the developer(s) upon the issuance of construction completion certificates.

Accrued administrative expenses and contractual obligations as of June 30, 2017, for
approximately $47 thousand. Comprised of $38 thousand in audit fees and $6 thousand due to
the Department of Housing and Community Development (‘DHCD”) for reimbursable operating
expenses. '

Compensated absences increased by approximately 32% to $42 thousand as the Land Bank's
staff increased by one full time employee and existing staff accrued additional time.

The Land Bank did not have an intercompany payable with the PRA at June 30, 2017, but rather a
receivable of $288 thousand. The $156 thousand payable due to the PRA for reimbursement of
expenses incurred on behalf of Land Bank’s for the period of January 1 through June 30, 2016
was recovered during the fiscal year.

Approximately $2.8 million of unearned revenue at June 30, 2017, went unexpended. The balance
of this funding will remain under the Land Bank’s budget authority and will be rolled over into
Fiscal Year 2018’s approved funding allocation. This represents a 95% increase from the period
ending June 30, 2016.



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Revenues
The Land Bank’s total revenues at June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

2018 2017 2016 % Change
Revenues applicable to; :
City of Philadelphia $ 850,000 $ 450,000 3 350,000 89%
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 2,300,192 2,146,953 1,831,939 7%
Other - City Agencies - 45218 - -100%
Other - Developer's Escrow - 44 259 3,000 -100%
Total Operating Revenues $ 3,150,192 § 2686430 $ 2184,939 17%

2018
In Fiscal Year 2018, the Land Bank generated revenue of $3,150,192, coupled with unearned

revenue rolled over from Fiscal Year 2017, $850,000 from the City in general funds and $2,300,192
from the PRA. As of June 30, 2018, the Land Bank recorded $3,150,192 in total revenue and had an
unearned revenue balance of $1,578,353. This represents an approximate decrease of 44%.

As the Land Bank continues to record the transfer of incoming properties from other City land holding
agencies, donated property revenue is generated to offset the recording of assets on the Land Bank's
statement of net position. These are synthetic fransactions with no offsetting consideration.
Consequently, in the initial year when properties are first recorded, revenue artificially increases the
Land Bank’s net position. During Fiscal Year 2018 eighteen (18) properties were sold below market
value with and/or without subsidy generating net sales proceeds of approximately $701 thousand, the
book value of these properties was approximately $1.2 million so an annual non-operating loss of
approximately $485 thousand associated with these dispositions will be reported.

For Fiscal Year 2019, a funding commitment is expected from the City of Philadelphia, as property
sales are not expected to fully subsidize the Land Bank’s operating budget and land acquisitions as
detailed in the strategic plan.

2017

in Fiscal Year 2017, the Land Bank received $2,642,171 in new funding, coupled with unearned
revenue rolled over from Fiscal Year 2016, $450,000 from the City in general funds, $2,146,953 from
the PRA and $45,218 from the Department of Health. As of June 30, 2017, the Land Bank recorded
$1,846,544 in total revenue and had an unearned revenue balance of $2,836,642. This represents an
approximate increase of 18% and $500 thousand in operating revenue on Fiscal Year 2016.



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Expenses
The Land Bank's total expenses for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the

following: :
2018 2017 2016 % Change

Personnel $ 1431211 $ 1,631,267 $ 1,178,942 -12%
Office rental 38,229 81,514 59,921 -53%
Outside service fees 2,655,951 929,600 927,775 186%
Depreciation and amortization 15,840 11,414 9,674 39%
Total Operating Expenses $ 4,141,231 $ 2653795 $ 2176,312 56% .

2018

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $1.5 million (56%) driven primarily by outside
service fees. For fiscal year 2018, 64% of total expenses incurred pertained to outside contracts and
service fees which include primarily tax lien acquisitions $1.23 million, legal fees $384 thousand,
insurance $127 thousand, stormwater charges $456 thousand, and $455 thousand for other
administrative and technology expenses. Personnel expenses decreased by 12% to $1.43 million.
The Land Bank received cost saving as PRA assighed employees were replaced with PHDC
employees with lower fringe rates, as well as fringe benefits decreased by $300 thousand as an
employee entered the DROP program this fiscal year. Personnel at June 30, 2018 includes fourteen
(14) fuli-time assigned staff compared to (9) in fiscal year 2017 and an indirect allocation of support
staff expenses from PHDC as approved by the inter-agency memorandum of understanding.

Office rental decreased by approximately 53% to $38,229. This can be attributed to payment to PRA
based on square footage utilized as opposed to the revised computation outlined in the memorandum
of understanding which utilizes total hours worked by the Land Bank staff which significantly
increased as staff was added, over total PHDC hours worked to calculate reimbursable amounts.

An inter-agency memorandum of understanding also exists with DHCD. For Fiscal year 2018,
approximately $165 thousand was expended to reimburse DHCD for services and contracts entered
into on behalf of the Land Bank.

2017

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $478 thousand (22%) driven by personnel
costs. For FY 2018, 61% of total expenses incurred pertain to personnel expenses, approximately
$1.63 million. Personnel at June 30, 2018 includes nine full time assigned staff (two employees were
terminated during the fiscal year and two additional vacant positions) and an indirect allocation of
support staff expenses from PHDC as approved by the inter-agency memorandum of understanding.

Office rental increased by approximately 36% to $81,514, this can be aftributed to the revised
computation outlined in the memorandum of understanding which utilizes total hours worked by the
Land Bank staff which significantly increased as staff was added, over total PHDC hours worked to
calculate reimbursable amounts.



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Expenses (Continued)

The majority of other expenses $929,600 (35%) are attributed to outside contracts and services and
are predominately technology related, approximately $320 thousand for the Drexel University fellows,
who assist with Land Bank parcel reconciliations and pricing model analysis, approximately $286
thousand for Land Bank insurance policies, approximately $71 thousand pertaining to real estate
activities, approximately $45 thousand to maintain Land Bank owned properties. Approximately $38
thousand for audit fees and approximately $55 thousand for technological consulting pertaining to
LAMA. (Land Bank’s property management enterprise solution).

An inter-agency memorandum of understanding also exists with DHCD. For Fiscal year 2018
approximately $116 thousand was expended to reimburse DHCD for services and contracts entered
into on behalf of the Land Bank.

Net Position

The Land Bank’s net position is derived for FY 2018 by the difference between revenue and expense.
Through June 30, 2018, the Land Bank’s net position of $26,854,717 represents approximately
(103%) of revenue generated as a resuit of the Land Bank recording the ownership of 2,055
properties ($26,590,211) and primarily the net loss of $485,017 on FY 2018 property dispositions
coupled with cumulative net capital assets purchased. In subsequent years the Land Bank's net
position surplus/deficit will be contingent on how many properties the Land Bank acquires and
disposes of and changes to the City of Philadelphia land disposition policy.

The Land Bank’'s net position for the period ended June 30, 2017 of $26,244,583 represents
approximately (103%) of revenue generated as a result of the Land Bank recording the ownership of
2,012 properties ($27,001,836) and primarily the net loss of $839,886 on FY 2017 property
dispositions coupled with cumulative net capital assets purchased.

Alternative Funding ,

The Land Bank has been the recipient of funds made available directly or indirectly from the City to
support the Land Bank’s initial startup. As property is transferred into the Land Bank and tax
foreclosure properties are acquired, the Land Bank strives to reduce the dependency on the City for
subsidy and within five years be able to finance its own activities and operation.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the statements and should be thoroughly
read for a complete detailed understanding of the financial position and activities of the Land Bank.

Issues That May Have a Significant Impact

A renewal of Memorandum of Understanding between the School District of Philadelphia, the City of
Philadelphia, Philadelphia Gas Works, and Philadelphia Land Bank. The Land Bank sought and
received a resolution to renew the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) reached with the School
District, City, and PGW last year which expires on September 15, 2018. The MOU establishes a
process for acquiring properties at Sheriff Sale as well as satisfying and clearing past due taxes and
municipal liens on those properties. If all parties agree, the Land Bank also proposes to have the
MOU renew automatically each year unless one party provides notice of termination.




PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Issues That May Have a Significant Impact (Continued)

The Land Bank plans to acquire 325-350 privately-owned, delinquent vacant properties each year
(less than 0.5% of all delinquent properties in the City). Properties will be targeted primarily for
affordable, workforce, and market rate housing, with a smaller portion of projects related to side yards,
community gardens, and business expansion.

The Land Bank has paid the School District approximately $1,150,000 between October 2017 and
July 2018 relating to the acquisition of 306 properties at Sheriff Sale.

PLB successfully submitted testimony and a brief to the Water Rate Board in May 2018, requesting
relief from storm water management fees, an approximate expense of $300,000 per fiscal year. In
June 2018 the Water Rate Board approved a zero rate for Land Bank, the rate will take effect in
September of 2018 (FY 2019). We are expecting ‘an approximate refund of over $60,000. ‘

The fiscal 2019 budget was presented and approved at the July Land Bank Board after the passage
of the City of Philadelphia’s budget. The Land Bank has $4,168,000 allocated for operations and
acquisitions. PLB met the with the Revenue and Budget Departments and agreed upon a process of
reviewing and approving operational cash flow precluding Land Bank’s need for a line of credit. With
the approval of continued spending authority by the Land Bank Board, the Land Bank will continue to
acquire properties through the next fiscal quarter.

Beginning July 2018, the Land Bank will follow the following procedure:

o The week before the scheduled monthly Sheriff sales the Land‘Bank will submit an invoice
to the Department of Revenue and Budget.
« The invoice will consist of a cover sheet detailing the total amount for that month’s Sheriff

sale.
o The invoice will be accompanied by a detailed spreadsheet identifying

= The address

= OPA Value

= All City Liens (RE Taxes, Water, PGW, Other)
= Bid Amount

«  Sheriff Costs

= Final Amount Due from the Land Bank per the MOU
e On a quarterly basis the Land Bank will provide Revenue and Budget financial statements
explaining the L.and Bank’s financial position.

The Land Bank entered into a Professional Services Agreement between the Land Bank and Interface
Studios LLC for preparation of the 2019 Strategic Plan. This plan will establish 5-year goals for the
Land Bank. Below is the timeline for completion:



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

Issues That May Have a Significant Impact (Continued)

tem Completion Date
Kick-off Meeting No later than July 23, 2018
Early-August 2018, but to be completed no
later than August 17, 2018
First Strategic Plan Draft Completed September 14, 2018
Preliminary Strategic Plan Published for Public Comment |October 12, 2018
Mid/late October, 2018, but to be completed
no later than October 19, 2018

First Round of QOutreach Meetings

Second Round of Outreach Meetings

Second Strategic Plan Draft Completed October 26, 2018

Land Bank Public Hearing No later than November 2, 2018
Final Strategic Plan Provided November 9, 2018

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by Land Bank Board November 15, 2018

Final Strategic Plan Introduced to City Council November 29, 2018

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by City Council December 6, 2018

As of June 30, 2018, the Land Bank was over its 2018 acquisitions budget by $27 thousand based on
the acquisitions of $2.577 million and authorized budget as $2.550 million. See the chart below for
additional information related to property acquisitions as compared to the strategic plan goals.

FY 2018 ACTUAL AND ESTIMATED ACQUISITIONS | Acq. to Date | Strategic Plan Goals |Difference
Sideyards (LOTS) 5 81 -76
Total Housing/Mixed Use (LOTS)(GOAL IS IN UNITS) 15 205 -180
Workforce/Affordable 13 154 -141
Market Rate 2 51 -49
Commercial and Business Expansion (LOTS) 5 -5
Gardens/Open Space (LOTS) =31

Community Use
TBD

The Philadelphia Land Bank is currently staffed at 94% capacity based on the approved previously
approved organization chart. In the last quarter of FY 2018, PLB Staff conducted a time study for all
disposition processes: .
e RFP,
Competitive Bid,
Side Yard,
« Business Expansion,
Garden Open Space.

Because of the study we realized that the organization needed more Clerk Ill. To balance the budget,
the Special Project Coordinator has been removed from the organization chart and we have inserted
two (2) additional Clerk Il positions. We have also begun the interview process for a third Sr.
Development Specialist.

9



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND AﬁALY@iE‘:‘ {(UNAUDITED)

Contacting the Land Bank’s Management

If you have any questions about this report or need additional
Philadelphia Land Bank at 1234 Market Street, 16™ Floor, Philadel
visit our website at www.philadelphialandbank.org. '

Sincerely,

Darren Williams
Director of Finance

information, you can contact the
;:aﬁi:&, PA 19107, (218) 448-3040 or

10



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT



MEercadieENn PC.

CERTIFED PUBLIC ACCOUMNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Philadelphia Land Bank
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the
"Land Bank"), City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the years
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to financial statements, which comprise
the Land Bank's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
" standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

11

G

P.0. Box 7648 | Princeton, N.J 08543-7648 | 609.685.9700 | Fax 609.689,9720
Leachng By Example | Mercadien . com



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Opinion ,
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Land Bank as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages one through ten be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
comprise the Land Bank’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of payments to
other City agencies and capital assets are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by the City of Philadelphia and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. These
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
- information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, these
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a

whole.

12



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
29, 2018, on our consideration of the Land Bank’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Land Bank’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 29, 2018

13



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Assets

Current Assetis
Cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Property held for development or sale

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Escrows payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net Position

*Certain account balances have been reclassed to conform with current year presentation

See notes to financial statements.

2018 2017
$ 2437517 $ 3,040,536
864,026 349,353
3,301,543 3,389,889
25,590,211 25,884,936
23,959 35,374
25614170 25,920,310
$ 28915713 $ 29310,199
$ 2,136 $ 126,261
31,611 14,000
390,860 46,652
58,036 42,0861
1,578,353 2,836,642
2,060,996 3,085,616
2,060,996 3,065,616
25,614,170 25,920,310
1,240,547 324,273
26,854,717 26,244 583
$ 28915713 $ 29,310,199

14



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET F’OSITION

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Operating Revenues
Revenues applicable to:
City of Philadelphia
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority
Other - City Agencies
Other - Developer's Escrow

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Personnel
Office rental

Outside services fees
Depreciation and amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating (Loss) Income

Net Gain/(Loss) on sales and transfers of land
Miscellaneous fees

Capital contributions

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Changes in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of year

Net Position, End of year

See notes to financial statements.

2018 2017
$ 850,000 $ 450,000
2,300,192 2,146,953
- 45218
- 44,259

3,150,192 2,686,430
1,431,211 1,631,267
38,229 81,514
2,655,951 929,600
15,840 11,414
4,141,231 2,653,795
(991,039) 32,635

1,279,043 (839,886)

8,630 -

313,500 17,299,702
1,601,173 16,459,816
610,134 16,492,451
26,244,583 9,752,132
$ 26,854,717 $ 26,244,583

15



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from contracts with the City of Philadelphia
and other agencies
Payments to employees for wages and benefits
Payments to suppliers for other costs

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sale of property held for development or sale

Net cash non-capital and related financiné activities
Net {Decrease)lincrease in Cash

Cash, Beginning of year

Cash, End of year

Reconciliation of Operating {Loss) Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Intergovernmental payable

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

See notes to financial statements.

2018 2017
$ 1137594 $ 4111225
(1,209,353) (1,404,567)
(2,442,023) (1,266,007)
(2,513,782) 1 440,651
1,910,763 292,831
1,910,763 292,831
(603,019) 1,733,482
3,040,536 1,307,054

$ 2437517 $  3.040.536
$ (991,039) $ 32635
15,840 11,414
(514,673) 443 889
- 210
(124,125) (41,127)
344,208 (239,469)
(1,259,968) 1,379,330
15,975 10,154

- (156,385)

$  (2513,782) S  1.440,651

16



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity

The Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is an independent governmental unit. In December
2012, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania enacted the Pennsylvania Land Bank Act 68
Pa.C.S.A. §§ 2101-2120, authorizing the creation of “land banks” by municipalities as tools to
facilitate the return of vacant, abandoned and tax delinquent land/properties to productive use.
In December 2013, City Council unanimously passed the ordinance which created the
Philadelphia Land Bank, which Mayor Nutter signed into law. In July 2014, the Land Bank was
incorporated.

The Land Bank is a new agency whose mission is to return vacant and tax delinquent property
to productive reuse. The Land Bank will consolidate many of the land acquisition and
disposition processes of the City under one umbrella, making it easier for private individuals
and organizations to acquire properties that contribute to neighborhood disinvestment and turn
them into assets for the community in which they are located. The Land Bank possesses a
number of tools that will enable it to help return derelict properties to productive use. The Land
Bank can:

e Acquire tax-delinquent properties through tax foreclosure.

¢ With the City’s consent, clear the title to those properties so that new owners are not
burdened by old liens. ' :

e Consolidate properties owned by multiple public agencies into single ownership to
speed property transfers to new private owners.

e Assist in the assemblage and disposition of land for community, nonprofit and for-profit
uses.

The Land Bank is governed by a board of directors composed of eleven members, five
appointed by the Mayor and five by City Council, with the eleventh appointed by the ten. All
board members’ terms end with the end of the administration and council’s term in January
2020, although they will serve until they are replaced. Members serve at the pleasure of their
appointing authority.

The Land Bank is funded both directly and indirectly through the City of Philadelphia (the

“City"). In its inaugural year, the Land Bank received general fund dollars directly from the City

and through the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (“PRA”) at the Mayor’s request. As of

June 30, 2018, the City has not indicated any intention to suspend or terminate its funding
. relationship with the Land Bank.

Financial Reporting
The Land Bank is considered to be a governmental organization. As such, the Land Bank
presents its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards (“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Land Bank considers itself to
be a special purpose governmental organization engaged only in business type activities.

17



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related Party and Memorandum of Understanding

There are no organizations or agencies that shouid be included in the Land Bank’s financial
statements. Through a Management Contract with the Philadelphia Housing Development
Corporation ("“PHDC”), PHDC manages, oversees and operates the everyday activities of the
Land Bank, which includes the authority to act on behalf of the Land Bank, hiring dedicated full
time Land Bank staff, and organizing administrative and clerical support staff. PHDC personnel
are also responsible for maintaining accurate financial records, facilitating the payment of
operational expenses and debts, and all external financial reporting.

Component Unit
The City of Philadelphia is considering the Land Bank as a potential Component Unit of the
City, with its annual financial information being consolidated into the City’'s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”). As of June 30, 2018, no formal decision has been
determined to its component unit status; however, the Land Bank will comply with the City's
guidelines in terms of both mandated required submissions and the implementation of GASB
Statement No.’s 68, 69 and 70, if applicable.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. All pass-through funding is
recognized as revenue when the related costs are incurred. Such costs could include costs of
acquisition and rehabilitation of certain real property to be alternately conveyed to program
beneficiaries.

Land Bank records all revenues derived and related expenses incurred from its programs and
activities as operating revenues and expenses since they are generated from the Land Bank’s
daily operations needed to carry out its purposes.

In its accounting and financial reporting, the Land Bank follows the pronouncements of the
GASB and other entities that promulgate accounting principles. GASB Statement 76, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments,
establishes the order of priority of pronouncements and other sources of accounting and
financial reporting guidance that a governmental entity should apply. Per the Statement, the
sources of authoritative generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) are categorized in
descending order of authority as follows: GASB Statements and Interpretations, GASB
Technical Bulletins, GASB Implementation Guides, and literature of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (*AICPA”) cleared by the GASB. Authoritative GAAP is
incorporated periodically into the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards (“Codification”), and when presented in the Codification, it retains its
authoritative status. If the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified
within a source of authoritative GAAP described above, a governmental entity should first
consider accounting principles for similar transactions or other events within a source of
authoritative GAAP described above and then may consider non-authoritative accounting
literature from other sources. These include GASB Concepts Statements; pronouncements
and other literature of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, Federal Accounting

18



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)
Standards Advisory Board, International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, and
International Accounting Standards Board, and AICPA literature not cleared by the GASB;
practices that are widely recognized and prevalent in state and local government; literature of
other professional associations or regulatory agencies; and accounting textbooks, handbooks
and articles.

Use of Estimates

- The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosure of assets, liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable ,
Accounts receivable generally represent amounts due under terms of grants and contracts for
expenditures incurred or services provided prior to year-end. Management provides for
probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to
a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts.
Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts
are written off. The Land Bank had no such balances at June 30, 2018. See Note D.

Revenue Recognition - Government Grants and Contracts
The Land Bank records funding received in advance under contracts with the PRA and the
City as unearned (deferred) revenue until the related costs are incurred or services performed,
at that time they are recognized as revenue. In accordance with the terms of the PHDC
Management Contract, Land Bank reimburses PHDC for all eligible and allowable costs
incurred on behalf of the Land Bank and recognizes revenue accordingly.

Property Held for Sale

Property held for development or sale will be stated at the lower of the cost of acquisition (or
equivalent valuation) or an impaired value, which reflects the land/property true valuation in
accordance with GASB Statement No.'s 34, 42 and 72. This methodology will be applied to
long-held vacant properties, as well as units recently acquired for sale. As of June 30, 2017,
the Land Bank owned 2,012 total properties, 719 acquired from PHDC, 1,100 acquired from
the City of Philadelphia Department of Public Property, 162 acquired from the Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority, 30 from sheriff sale, and one private acquisition. As of June 30,
2018, the Land Bank owned 2,055 total properties, 719 acquired from PHDC, 1,101 acquired
from the City of Philadelphia Department of Public Property, 169 acquired from the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, 65 from sheriff sale, and one private acquisition. The
Land Bank utilized the City of Philadelphia’s Office of Property Assessment pricing model to
determine the valuation “pricing” of its properties as the equivalent of the cost of acquisition.
This methodology will be reassessed in 2019, coupled with consideration for establishing an
impairment allowance, if the Land Bank maintains ownership of these properties for an
extended period of time.

19



PHIALADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital assets are carried at cost or estimated historical cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Capital assets are defined by the Land Bank as assets with a cost of more than $750 and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows: :

Buildings (operating real estate) 30 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 10 years
Computer equipment and hardware " 5 years

As of July 1, 2017, the Land Bank adopted an addendum to SAP E-72-002 (personal property
perpetual inventory) which increased the minimum purchase price from $500 to $750 for an
expenditure to be considered a capital asset.

Lease Obligations
The Land Bank has two lease agreements as of June 30, 2018. Both are thirty-six-month
leases with Ford Credit for the lease of two vehicles. Lease payments will not be capitalized
and will be expended monthly. The first lease was entered into in October 2016, for a total of
$12,459 with an outstanding balance of $5,936. The second lease was entered into in June
2017, for a total of $14,138 with an outstanding balance of $10,582 as of June 30, 2018.

Compensated Absences

Land Bank staff are employed by PHDC and accrue leave time in accordance with PHDC
personnel policies. PHDC employees accumulate sick and vacation time in accordance with
their applicable contracts. Employees are not compensated for unused sick leave upon
termination unless termination is due to retirement. Retiring employees are entitled to 30% of
their accumulated sick time. Employees may carry over unused vacation on January 1 of each
year, up to 560 hours.. Compensated absences are accrued when incurred and reported as a
liability. A corresponding entry is recorded to accounts receivable, since all such amounts are
reimbursable by the respective agencies. The accrued liability for compensated absences is
also reflected in PHDC's financial statements.

Other Post-employment Benefits

On behalf of Land Bank, PHDC accounts for other post-employment benefits under GASB
Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-employment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement requires governmental agencies to recognize
an expense under the accrual basis for the annual required other post-employment benefits
contributions, regardless of amounts paid into your plan annually. The cumulative difference
between amounts expensed and paid creates a liability (asset) similar to net pension
obligations. For the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Land Bank did not incur costs for
other post-employment benefits.

20



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in
capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets and property held for development
or sale, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position
invested in capital assets net of related debt excludes unspent debt proceeds. Net position is
reported as restricted when limitations on their use are imposed through external restrictions
by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net position
consists of all other net position not included in the above categories.

income Taxes
The Land Bank is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 115 [1] of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is presented in these financial
statements. In addition, properties held for development are exempt from real estate taxes.

B. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

‘Annual budgets are adopted based upon approved funding commitments with outside grantor(s)
(The City of Philadelphia, PRA) on a basis consistent with U.S. GAAP. All budgets continue to
exist for the period defined in the scope of the funding management agreement. In December of
each year, the Land Bank prepares a subsequent year budget and submits it to the City for
consideration. The Mayor and Council decide the level of support and origin of funds the Land
Bank receives.

The appropriated budget is prepared by account and function. Once the budget is funded, the
Land Bank may make transfers of appropriations within the agency without written authorization
from the grantor.

C. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Legal and Contractual Restrictions

City of Philadelphia agencies are authorized by statute to deposit funds in depositories that are
either banks, banking institutions or frust companies located in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. To the extent that such deposits exceed federal insurance, the depositories
must pledge as collateral (with their trust department or other custodians) obligations of the
United States, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any political subdivision of the
Commonwealth. Under Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971 (“Act 72”), as amended, the depositories
may meet this collateralization requirement by pooling appropriate securities to cover all public
funds on deposit. The Land Bank has no investments and receives no interest income for
cash on deposit.

Analysis of Custodial Credit Risk ;
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Land Bank’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The Land Bank maintains its cash balances in accounts at a
financial institution. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) provides insurance
coverage up to $250,000. The financial institution secures Land Bank deposits in excess of
FDIC with a pledge of collateral in accordance with Act 72. The pool of assets applicable to the
financial institution’s collateralization consists of Government National Mortgage Association
(GNMA) securities and other collateral eligible under the U.S. Treasury Tax and Loan Program

as in effect on the effective date of Act 72.
21



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts Receivable as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, are as follows:

2018 < 2017
PRA and Net VPRC proceeds $ 108,153 $287,594
Private Developers - 17,500
Purchase Money Mortgages 755,873 44,259

$ 864,026 $349,353

The VPRC (“vacant property review committee”) program is administered directly by Land Bank
staff coordinating the disposition of City-owned properties. Effective April 2018, the Land Bank
processes all VPRC sales and directly collects the sales proceeds. Previously, PRA would
administer the process and the Land Bank would receive the net sales proceeds. The PMM
receivable will likely be unrealized.

. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, was:
2018 2017
Computers and equipment $ 55,637 $ 55,638
Furniture and equipment 2,870 2,870
Total Capital Assets 58,507 58,508
Less - accumulated depreciation (34,549) (23,134)
Total Capital Assets $ 23,959 $ 35,373

Depreciation expenses for capital assets were $11,414 and $11,414 for the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2018 and 2017, consist of the following:

2018 2017
Accounts Payable $ 2136 $126,261
Escrows payable 31,611 14,000
Accrued Administrative Expenses 390,860 46,652
Compensated Absences 58,036 42 061

$482,643 $228,974

22



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsyivania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation
The Land Bank is not a named defendant in any pending lawsuits.

H. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties of the Land Bank include the City, PHDC and the PRA. Net Accounts (payable)/
receivable from PRA are ($1,726) and $287,594 and Net amounts receivable/(payable) from
PHDC are $65,940 and ($123,165) as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Substantially all
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
are included under and dependent upon contracts and management agreements with the City and
its agencies.

. PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

Land Bank staff can participate in the City of Philadelphia Municipal Public Employee
Retirement System, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer Public Employees Retirement System
("PERS”). The City of Philadelphia issues a publicly available financial report that includes the
applicable financial statements and required supplementary information for the PERS. The
report may be obtained by contacting the Director of Finance of the City of Philadelphia. All
full-time employees are eligible and required to participate in the PERS. The PERS provides
pension benefits, deferred allowances and death and disability benefits. PHDC employees
hired prior to January 1, 2002, participate in the J Plan. Under this plan, if an employee
terminates his or her employment after at least 10 years of service but before reaching the age
of 55, he or she may receive a refund of total contributions or defer pension benefits until
reaching retirement age. Employees who retire after age 55 with at least one year of credited
service are entitled to receive pension benefits for the rest of their lives equal to 2-1/2% of their
final average compensation times the number of years for which they were employed by a
participant in the PERS. After the first 20 years of service, the percentage of average final
compensation to which an employee is entitled for each year of credited service decreases
from 2-1/2% to 2%. Under Plan J, the highest maximum allowable benefit is 80%.

Participants in PERS may opt for early retirement with a reduced benefit. The Deferred
Retirement Option Plan was initiated on October 1, 1999. Under this plan, employees who
reach retirement age may accumulate their monthly service retirement benefit in an interest-
bearing account at the Board of Pensions for up to four years and continue to be employed by
PHDC.

PHDC employees hired after December 31, 2001, participate in Plan Y. Under this plan,
employees with 10 years credited service may retire at age 60. Employees retiring after 60 are
entitled to receive pension benefits for the rest of their lives equal to 2.2% of their final average
compensation times the number of years for which they were employed by a participant in the
PERS. After 10 years of service, the percentage of average final compensation to which an
employee is entitled for each year of credited service decreases from'2.2% to 2%. Under Plan
Y, the highest maximum allowable benefit is 100%.

23



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Plan Description (Continued)
Employees under Plan Y who are not eligible to be represented by a union must vest their
retirement benefits in five years rather than the normal 10-year vesting period. Members of the
5-year vesting (the Y5 Plan) are required to pay a higher contribution rate of .62 of one percent
in addition to the normal Plan Y rate for five years. Their contribution rate then reverts to the
normal Y Plan rate for the remainder of their employment.

Under each plan, provisions include death benefits, whereby the surviving beneficiary is
entitled to receive 50% of monthiy retirement payments. Additionally, the plans provide for
disability benefits under which the disabled employee is entitled to receive benefits computed
as if the employee were receiving a regular service pension. All Land Bank pension obligations
and post-employment benefits are included in PHDC’s financial statements.

‘Contributions Required and Made
Employees of PHDC were required to pay 4.75%, 3.14% (4.14% if hired after 11/14/2014),
3.63% and 3.10% of their gross earnings to the pension plan for the J Plan, Y Plan, Y5 Plan
and Y10 Plan, respectively, for 2018; compared to 4.75%, 3.02% (4.02% if hired after
11/14/2014), 3.63% and 3.47% of their gross earnings to the pension plan for the J Plan, Y
Plan, Y5 Plan and Y10 Plan, respectively, for 2017. Employees of the higher DC-33 plan pay
based on a tiered system.

PHDC was required to contribute at actuarially determined rates, which were 253.103% and
221.990% of covered payroll for the J Plan for 2018 and 2017, respectively; and 10.180% and
9.422% of covered payroll for the Y Plan for 2018 and 2017, respectively. PHDC contributed
1.440% and 1.243% of covered payroll for Plan 10 for 2018 and 2017, respectively.. PHDC
makes quarterly payments to the City PERS within 30 days of the end of each quarter. The
Land Bank reimbursed PHDC for $58,220 and $326,607 in pension related expenses for the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. There were no eligible J Plan employees
in 2018.

J. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Land Bank is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Land Bank carries

insurance.
PURCHASE MONEY MORTGAGES

The Land Bank has the authority to enter into PMM agreements with potential property buyers to
subsidize the agreed purchase price which consequently protects the Land Bank’s financial
interest. These PMMs are self-amortizing over a period of ten years. The Land Bank will
recognize the PMM as a receivable and revenue in the agreement year and amortize annually,
until forgiven. Upon default, the PMM principal and accrued interest calculated at 4% annually, is
due in full immediately. The Land Bank recorded new PMM receivables of $716 thousand in 2018.

24



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS TO OTHER CITY AGENCIES

* Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation (PHDC)

FY 2018 PHDC labor expenses
July 2017 - April 2018 $ 677,791

6/30/2018 Accrued labor expenses

May & June 2018 labor expenses 59,255
Other payment reimbursements
Vehicle Insurance ‘ 7,167
Insurance Brooker Fee 23,842
Computer Supplies ’ ‘ 2,688
Other 526
34,223
Total reimbursed PHDC expenses $ 771,269

* Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (PRA)

Accrued labor & reimbursable expenses

Net September 2017 activity $ 5,339
Annual Rent 38,229
Total PRA expenses $ 43,568

* Division of Housing & Community Development (DHCD)

Support Services

Q1 & Q2 of FY 2018 $ 60,439
Q3 & Q4 of FY 2018 89,663
150,102
FY 2018 Reimbursable direct expenses 14,584 '
Total DHCD expenses ‘ $ 164,686

* City of Philadelphia - Survey District

Accrued Survey fees (Bodine St) $ 6,440

Total City of Philadelphia expenses $ 6,440



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS
As of June 30, 2018

Date Useful Life FY 2018  Accumulated
Computer Equipment (5 years) Amount Purchased {months)  Depreciation Depreciation Net Book Value
Dell Latitude E74400 $ 1,429 3/22/2015 60 % 286 3% 936 $ 493
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 669 3/20/2015 60 134 439 230
IBM 16GB Memory Kit (Server) 11,610 3/23/2015 60 2,322 7,596 4,014
Dell Precision T1700 GIS 42710-120 1,449 6/9/2015 60 290 886 563
Dell Precision T1700 GIS 42710-120 1,449 6/9/2015 60 290 886 563
Dell Precision T1700 GIS 42710-120 1,449 6/9/2015 60 290 886 563
Dell Latitude E7450 1,644 9/30/2015 60 329 904 740
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Optiplex 7020 MT 210-ACRY 17.3 860 9/20/2015 60 172 478 382
Dell Precision 3620 XCTO 1,652 6/56/2016 60 330 683 969
Dell Precision 3620 XCTO 1,652 6/5/2016 60 330 683 969
Deli Optiplex 5040 1,197 6/1/2016 680 239 497 700
Dell Optiplex 5040 1,197 6/1/2016 60 239 497 700
Dell Optiplex 5040 1,197 6/1/2016 60 | 239 497 700
39,875 7,975 23,243 16,633

Date Useful Life FY 2018 Accumulated
Computer Software (5 years) Amount Purchased (months)  Depreciation Depreciation Net Book Value
Microsoft Dynamics SL. 2015 15,762 3/10/2015 60 3,162 10,424 5,338
15,762 3,152 10,424 5,338

Date Useful Life FY 2018 Accumulated
Equipment (10 years) Amount Purchased {months)  Depreciation Depreciation Net Book Value
Widmer S-3 Check Signer 975 5/7/2015 120 97 307 668
Epson Home Cinema Projector 1,896 6/18/2015 120 190 575 1,321
2,870 287 882 1,989
TOTAL $ 58,507 $ 11,414 $ 34,549 § 23,959

26



MercadieN, PC.

COERTIFELD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Philadelphia Land Bank
City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States, the financial statements of
the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Land Bank"), City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which comprise the Land Bank’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 29, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Land Bank’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Land
Bank’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Land Bank’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal confrol, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. :

27

P.O. Box 7648 | Princeton, NJ 08543-7648 | 609.689.9700 | Fax 609.689.9720
Lenchme By Fxanple | Mercadien com



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Land Bank’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Land Bank’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Land Bank’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 29, 2018

28



